
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PANTHER TRACE II 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

Advanced Meeting Package 
Regular Meeting   

 
Monday 

                                    November 26, 2018 
 

 6:30 p.m.  
 
 

Panther Trace II Clubhouse 
11518 Newgate Crest Drive  

Riverview, Florida 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials 
are considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or 
adoption. 
 



Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175, Tampa, Florida 33647 

Phone: 813-374-9105 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Panther Trace II Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
A Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community Development 
District is scheduled for M o n d a y , November 26, 2018  at 6:30 p.m. at the Panther Trace II 
Clubhouse, 11518 Newgate Crest Drive, Riverview, Florida. 

 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation.   Any 
additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature and staff will present their reports at the meeting.  If you 
have any questions, please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Ray Lotito 
District Manager 

 
cc: Attorney, Straley Robin 

Engineer, Stantec 
Clubhouse Manager 
District Files 



District: PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Agenda 

I. Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Audience Comments

III. Organizational Matters

A. Oath of Office of Newly Elected Supervisors    Exhibit 1 

 Jeffrey Spiess Seat #2

 David Steppy Seat #3

B. Form 1 and Supervisor Information Sheet  Exhibit 2 

C. Acceptance of Letter of Resignation from Supervisor       Exhibit 3 
Anthony Cunha Seat #1

D. Board Nomination to Fill Vacant Board Seat #1

E. Acceptance or Waiver of Compensation

F. Review of Sunshine Law and Supervisor Duties

G. Consideration and Approval of Resolution 2019-01    Exhibit 4 
Designation of Officers 

   Exhibit 5 

   Exhibit 6 

   Exhibit 7 

IV. Landscape & Pond Maintenance

A. LMP Maintenance Report

B. Remson Aquatics Pond Maintenance Report

V. Administrative Matters

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes of the 
October 22, 2018 Meeting 

Date of Meeting: November 26, 2018 
Time: 6:30 P.M. 
Location: Panther Trace II Clubhouse 

11518 Newgate Crest Drive 
Riverview, Florida 

(under separate cover)



Panther Trace II CDD November 26, 2018 
Regular Meeting Page 2 

B. Acceptance of the Unaudited October 2018 Financial    Exhibit 8 
Statement

C. Acceptance of the Operations & Maintenance  Exhibit 9 
Expenditures for October 2018

VI. Business Matters

A. Consideration of Solicited Proposals for District Audit
Services

After receiving no responses from the Audit Committee’s  
solicitation, proposals were solicited and received from the 
following firms: 

 Grau, CPA $3,600 (2018)   Exhibit 10 

 DiBartolomeo, CPA  $3,200 (2018)   Exhibit 11 

 Summary   Exhibit 12 

B. Acceptance of the LLS Tax Solutions, Inc. Engagement   Exhibit 13
Letter

VII. Staff Report

A. District Manager

B. District Counsel

C. District Engineer

D. Amenity Manager November 2018 Operations Report   Exhibit 14 

VIII. Audience Comments

IX. Supervisor Requests

X. Adjournment



EXHIBIT 1. 
 



{00067942.DOC/} 

Oath of Office 

I, _____________________________, a resident of the State of Florida and citizen of the 
United States of America, and being a Supervisor of Panther Trace II Community Development 
District and a recipient of public funds on behalf of the District, do hereby solemnly swear or 
affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 
Florida, and will faithfully, honestly and impartially discharge the duties devolving upon me in the 
office of Supervisor of Panther Trace II Community Development District, Hillsborough County, 
Florida. 

Signature 

_____________________________ 
Date 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY 

OF HILLSBOROUGH 

The foregoing oath was administered before me this ______ day of November 

2018 by _____________________________, who personally appeared before me, and is [  ] 

personally known to me or [  ] has produced ____________________________ as 

identification, and is the person described in and who took the aforementioned oath as a Member 

of the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community Development District and 

acknowledged to and before me that she/he took said oath for purposes therein expressed. 

Notary Public State of Florida 

(Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of 
 Notary Public and the Date the Commission Expires) 



EXHIBIT 2. 



**** BOTH PARTS OF THIS SECTION MUST BE COMPLETED ****
DISCLOSURE PERIOD:
THIS STATEMENT REFLECTS YOUR FINANCIAL INTERESTS FOR THE PRECEDING TAX YEAR, WHETHER BASED ON A CALENDAR 
YEAR OR ON A FISCAL YEAR.  PLEASE STATE BELOW WHETHER THIS STATEMENT IS FOR THE PRECEDING TAX YEAR ENDING 
EITHER (must check one):  

  DECEMBER 31, 2017 OR  SPECIFY TAX YEAR IF OTHER THAN THE CALENDAR YEAR:____________

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTERESTS:
FILERS HAVE THE OPTION OF USING REPORTING THRESHOLDS THAT ARE ABSOLUTE DOLLAR VALUES, WHICH REQUIRES FEWER 
CALCULATIONS, OR USING COMPARATIVE THRESHOLDS, WHICH ARE USUALLY BASED ON PERCENTAGE VALUES (see instructions 
for further details).  CHECK THE ONE YOU ARE USING (must check one):
  COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS  OR  DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS

FORM 1

PART A -- PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME  [Major sources of income to the reporting person - See instructions]   
(If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF SOURCE SOURCE'S DESCRIPTION OF THE SOURCE'S
OF INCOME ADDRESS PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY

PART B --  SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME 
      [Major customers, clients, and other sources of income to businesses owned by the reporting person - See instructions]
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF NAME OF MAJOR SOURCES ADDRESS PRINCIPAL BUSINESS
BUSINESS ENTITY OF BUSINESS' INCOME OF SOURCE ACTIVITY OF SOURCE

FILING INSTRUCTIONS for when 
and where to file this form are 
located at the bottom of page 2.

INSTRUCTIONS on who must file 
this form and how to fill it out 
begin on page 3.

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

PART C -- REAL PROPERTY  [Land, buildings owned by the reporting person - See instructions] 
     (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018   (Continued on reverse side) PAGE 1
Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202(1), F.A.C.

NAME OF OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT :

NAME OF AGENCY :

You are not limited to the space on the lines on this form. Attach additional sheets, if necessary.

CHECK ONLY IF     CANDIDATE     OR         NEW EMPLOYEE OR APPOINTEE

MAILING ADDRESS :

LAST NAME -- FIRST NAME -- MIDDLE NAME :

Please print or type your name, mailing 
address, agency name, and position below: 

CITY : ZIP : COUNTY :

STATEMENT OF
 FINANCIAL INTERESTS

2017



FILING INSTRUCTIONS:

IF ANY OF PARTS A THROUGH G ARE CONTINUED ON A SEPARATE SHEET, PLEASE CHECK HERE    

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY [Stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, etc. - See instructions] 
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

TYPE OF INTANGIBLE BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATES

PART E — LIABILITIES  [Major debts - See instructions]
 (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a")

NAME OF CREDITOR ADDRESS OF CREDITOR

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES   [Ownership or positions in certain types of businesses - See instructions]  
      (If you have nothing to report, write "none" or "n/a") 

    BUSINESS ENTITY # 1       BUSINESS ENTITY # 2

NAME OF BUSINESS ENTITY 

ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY

POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY

I OWN MORE THAN A 5% INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS

NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST

If you were mailed the form by the Commission on Ethics or a County 
Supervisor of Elections for your annual disclosure filing, return the 
form to that location. To determine what category your position falls 
under, see page 3 of instructions.  
Local officers/employees file with the Supervisor of Elections 
of the county in which they permanently reside. (If you do not 
permanently reside in Florida, file with the Supervisor of the county 
where your agency has its headquarters.) Form 1 filers who file with 
the Supervisor of Elections may file by mail or email. Contact your 
Supervisor of Elections for the mailing address or email address to 
use. Do not email your form to the Commission on Ethics, it will be 
returned. 
State officers or specified state employees who file with the 
Commission on Ethics may file by mail or email. To file by mail, 
send the completed form to P.O. Drawer 15709, Tallahassee, FL  
32317-5709; physical address: 325 John Knox Rd, Bldg E, Ste 200, 
Tallahassee, FL 32303. To file with the Commission by email, scan 
your completed form and any attachments as a pdf (do not use any 
other format) and send it to CEForm1@leg.state.fl.us. Do not file by 
both mail and email. Choose only one filing method. Form 6s will not 
be accepted via email.

Candidates file this form together with their filing papers.  
MULTIPLE FILING UNNECESSARY: A candidate who files a Form 
1 with a qualifying officer is not required to file with the Commission 
or Supervisor of Elections.
WHEN TO FILE: Initially, each local officer/employee, state officer, 
and specified state employee must file within 30 days of the 
date of his or her appointment or of the beginning of employment.  
Appointees who must be confirmed by the Senate must file prior to 
confirmation, even if that is less than 30 days from the date of their 
appointment.
Candidates must file at the same time they file their qualifying 
papers.
Thereafter, file by July 1 following each calendar year in which they 
hold their positions.
Finally, file a final disclosure form (Form 1F) within 60 days of 
leaving office or employment. Filing a CE Form 1F (Final Statement 
of Financial Interests) does not relieve the filer of filing a CE Form 1 
if the filer was in his or her position on December 31, 2017.

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. PAGE 2
Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202(1), F.A.C.

SIGNATURE OF FILER: 

Signature: 

  ____________________________________________

Date Signed:

  ____________________________________________

    CPA or ATTORNEY SIGNATURE ONLY
If a certified public accountant licensed under Chapter 473, or attorney 
in good standing with the Florida Bar prepared this form for you, he or 
she must complete the following statement:  

I, _______________________________________, prepared the CE 
Form 1 in accordance with Section 112.3145, Florida Statutes, and the 
instructions to the form. Upon my reasonable knowledge and belief, the 
disclosure herein is true and correct. 

CPA/Attorney Signature: ______________________________

Date Signed:  _______________________________________

PART G — TRAINING  
For elected municipal officers required to complete annual ethics training pursuant to section 112.3142, F.S. 

 I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE COMPLETED THE REQUIRED TRAINING.



Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from
which you received more than 10% of your gross income—an 
amount that was more than $1,500. If only one customer, a uniform
rental company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning 
business, you must list the name of the uniform rental company, 
its address, and its principal business activity (uniform rentals). 
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping 
mall and your partnership income exceeded the thresholds listed 
above. You should list each tenant of the mall that provided more 
than 10% of the partnership’s gross income, and the tenant’s 
address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in 

Florida in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during 
the disclosure period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You 
are not required to list your residences. You should list any vacation 
homes, if you derive income from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a 
beneficiary of a trust that owns the property, as well as situations 
where you own more than 5% of a partnership or corporation that 
owns the property. The value of the property may be determined by 
the most recently assessed value for tax purposes, in the absence 
of a more current appraisal.

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists. 
PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time 

during the disclosure period, was worth more than 10% of your total 
assets, and state the business entity to which the property related. 
Intangible personal property includes things such as cash on hand, 
stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle leases, interests in 
businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed you, Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida Prepaid 
College Plan, and bank accounts. Intangible personal property also 
includes investment products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and 
the Florida College Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained 
in a brokerage account, IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan 
is your asset—not the account or plan itself. Things like automobiles 
and houses you own, jewelry, and paintings are not intangible 
property.  Intangibles relating to the same business entity may be 
aggregated; for example, CD’s and savings accounts with the same 
bank. 

Calculations: To determine whether the intangible property 
exceeds 10% of your total assets, total the fair market value of 
all of your assets (including real property, intangible property, and 
tangible personal property such as jewelry, furniture, etc.). When 
making this calculation, do not subtract any liabilities (debts) that 
may relate to the property. Multiply the total figure by 10% to arrive 
at the disclosure threshold. List only the intangibles that exceed 
this threshold amount. The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s 
present value minus the lease residual (a number which can be 
found on the lease document). Property that is only jointly owned 
property should be valued according to the percentage of your joint 
ownership. Property owned as tenants by the entirety or as joint 
tenants with right of survivorship should be valued at 100%. None of 
your calculations or the value of the property have to be disclosed on 
the form. 

Example: You own 50% of the stock of a small corporation that 
is worth $100,000, the estimated fair market value of your home 
and other property (bank accounts, automobile, furniture, etc.) 
is $200,000. As your total assets are worth $250,000, you must 
disclose intangibles worth over $25,000. Since the value of the 
stock exceeds this threshold, you should list “stock” and the 
name of the corporation. If your accounts with a particular bank 
exceed $25,000, you should list “bank accounts” and bank’s 
name.

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed any 

amount that, at any time during the disclosure period, exceeded your 
net worth. You are not required to list the amount of any debt or your 
net worth. You do not have to disclose: credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness 
on a life insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or 
contingent liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will become 
an actual liability only when one or more future events occur or fail 
to occur, such as where you are liable only as a guarantor, surety, or 
endorser on a promissory note. If you are a “co-maker” and are jointly 
liable or jointly and severally liable, it is not a contingent liability. 

Calculations: To determine whether the debt exceeds your 
net worth, total all of your liabilities (including promissory notes, 
mortgages, credit card debts, judgments against you, etc.). The 
amount of the liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due 
payments and all unpaid prospective lease payments. Subtract 
the sum total of your liabilities from the value of all your assets as 
calculated above for Part D. This is your “net worth.” List each creditor 
to whom your debt exceeded this amount unless it is one of the types 
of indebtedness listed in the paragraph above (credit card and retail 
installment accounts, etc.). Joint liabilities with others for which you 
are “jointly and severally liable,” meaning that you may be liable for 
either your part or the whole of the obligation, should be included in 
your calculations at 100% of the amount owed.

Example: You owe $15,000 to a bank for student loans, $5,000 
for credit card debts, and $60,000 (with spouse) to a savings 
and loan for a home mortgage. Your home (owned by you and 
your spouse) is worth $80,000 and your other property is worth 
$20,000. Since your net worth is $20,000 ($100,000 minus 
$80,000), you must report only the name and address of the 
savings and loan.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145, F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state 

and federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan 
associations; cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage 
companies; credit unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage 
licensees; pari-mutuel wagering companies, utility companies, entities 
controlled by the Public Service Commission; and entities granted a 
franchise to operate by either a city or a county government.

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the 
disclosure period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with, 
the types of businesses listed above. You are required to make this 
disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or indirectly in the 
form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during the 
disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock 
of one of the types of business entities listed above. You also must 
complete this part of the form for each of these types of businesses 
for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure period, 
an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address 
and principal business activity, and the position held with the business 
(if any). If you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business,  
indicate that fact and describe the nature of your interest.

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]
If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer whose 

service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, you 
are required to complete four hours of ethics training which addresses 
Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code of Ethics 
for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records and open 
meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on this form that 
you have taken such training.

(End of Percentage Thresholds Instructions.)

NOTICE 
Annual Statements of Financial Interests are due July 1. If the annual form is not filed or postmarked by September 1, 
an automatic fine of $25 for each day late will be imposed, up to a maximum penalty of $1,500.  Failure to file also can 
result in removal from public office or employment. [s. 112.3145, F.S.]

In addition, failure to make any required disclosure constitutes grounds for and may be punished by one or more of the 
following:  disqualification from being on the ballot, impeachment, removal or suspension from office or employment, 
demotion, reduction in salary, reprimand, or a civil penalty not exceeding $10,000. [s. 112.317, F.S.]

1) Elected public officials not serving in a political subdivision of the
state and any person appointed to fill a vacancy in such office, unless 
required to file full disclosure on Form 6.

2) Appointed members of each board, commission, authority, or
council having statewide jurisdiction, excluding members of solely advisory 
bodies, but including judicial nominating commission members; Directors 
of Enterprise Florida, Scripps Florida Funding Corporation, and Career 
Source Florida; and members of the Council on the Social Status of Black 
Men and Boys; the Executive Director, Governors, and senior managers of 
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation; Governors and senior managers 
of Florida Workers' Compensation Joint Underwriting Association; board 
members of the Northeast Fla. Regional Transportation Commission; board 
members of Triumph Gulf Coast, Inc; board members of Florida Is For 
Veterans, Inc.; and members of the Technology Advisory Council within the 
Agency for State Technology.

3) The Commissioner of Education, members of the State Board
of Education, the Board of Governors, the local Boards of Trustees and 
Presidents of state universities, and the Florida Prepaid College Board.

4) Persons elected to office in any political subdivision (such as
municipalities, counties, and special districts) and any person appointed to 
fill a vacancy in such office, unless required to file Form 6.

5) Appointed members of the following boards, councils,
commissions, authorities, or other bodies of county, municipality, school 
district, independent special district, or other political subdivision: the 
governing body of the subdivision; community college or junior college 
district boards of trustees; boards having the power to enforce local code 
provisions; boards of adjustment; community redevelopment agencies; 
planning or zoning boards having the power to recommend, create, or 
modify land planning or zoning within a political subdivision, except for 
citizen advisory committees, technical coordinating committees, and similar 
groups who only have the power to make recommendations to planning 
or zoning boards, and except for representatives of a military installation 
acting on behalf of all military installations within that jurisdiction; pension 
or retirement boards empowered to invest pension or retirement funds 
or determine entitlement to or amount of pensions or other retirement 
benefits.

6) Any appointed member of a local government board who is
required to file a statement of financial interests by the appointing authority 
or the enabling legislation, ordinance, or resolution creating the board.

 7) Persons holding any of these positions in local government:
mayor; county or city manager; chief administrative employee or finance 

director of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision; county or 
municipal attorney; chief county or municipal building inspector; county 
or municipal water resources coordinator; county or municipal pollution 
control director; county or municipal environmental control director; county 
or municipal administrator with power to grant or deny a land development 
permit; chief of police; fire chief; municipal clerk; appointed district school 
superintendent; community college president; district medical examiner; 
purchasing agent (regardless of title) having the authority to make any 
purchase exceeding $20,000 for the local governmental unit.

8) Officers and employees of entities serving as chief administrative
officer of a political subdivision.

9) Members of governing boards of charter schools operated by a
city or other public entity. 

10) Employees in the office of the Governor or of a Cabinet member
who are exempt from the Career Service System, excluding secretarial, 
clerical, and similar positions.

11) The following positions in each state department, commission,
board, or council: Secretary, Assistant or Deputy Secretary, Executive 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Executive Director, and anyone having the 
power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of title.

12) The following positions in each state department or division:
Director, Assistant or Deputy Director, Bureau Chief, Assistant Bureau 
Chief, and any person having the power normally conferred upon such 
persons, regardless of title.

13) Assistant State Attorneys, Assistant Public Defenders, criminal
conflict and civil regional counsel, and assistant criminal conflict and civil 
regional counsel, Public Counsel, full-time state employees serving as 
counsel or assistant counsel to a state agency, administrative law judges, 
and hearing officers.

14) The Superintendent or Director of a state mental health institute
established for training and research in the mental health field, or any major 
state institution or facility established for corrections, training, treatment, or 
rehabilitation.

15) State agency Business Managers, Finance and Accounting
Directors, Personnel Officers, Grant Coordinators, and purchasing agents 
(regardless of title) with power to make a purchase exceeding $20,000.

16) The following positions in legislative branch agencies: each
employee (other than those employed in maintenance, clerical, secretarial, 
or similar positions and legislative assistants exempted by the presiding 
officer of their house); and each employee of the Commission on 
Ethics.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM 1:
INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION (Top of Form): If your 
name, mailing address, public agency, and position are already 
printed on the form, you do not need to provide this information 
unless it should be changed.  To change any of this information, 
write the correct information on the form, and contact your 
agency's financial disclosure coordinator.  You can find your 
coordinator on the Commission on Ethics website: www.ethics.
state.fl.us. 
NAME OF AGENCY: The name of the governmental unit 
which you serve or served, by which you are or were employed, 
or for which you are a candidate. 
OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT: The title of 
the office or position you hold, are seeking, or held during the 
disclosure period even if you have since left that position. If you 
are a candidate for office or are a new employee or appointee, 
check the appropriate box.

PUBLIC RECORD: The disclosure form and everything 
attached to it is a public record. Your Social Security Number 
is not required and you should redact it from any documents 
you file. If you are an active or former officer or employee listed 
in Section 119.071, F.S., whose home address is exempt from 
disclosure, the Commission will maintain that confidentiality if 
you submit a written request.  
DISCLOSURE PERIOD: The tax year for most individuals 
is the calendar year (January 1 through December 31). If that 
is the case for you, then your financial interests should be 
reported for the calendar year 2017; check that box. If you file 
your IRS tax return based on a tax year that is not the calendar 
year, you should specify the dates of your tax year in this 
portion of the form and check the appropriate box. This is the 
"disclosure period" for your report.

WHO MUST FILE FORM 1:

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 6 CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 3



PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal sources 

of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to disclose the 
amount of income received, and you need not list your public salary from 
serving in the position(s) which requires you to file this form. The income 
of your spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income 
to you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest 
or dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should disclose the 
source of that income if it exceeded the threshold.

 Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and principal 
business activity of each source of your income which exceeded $2,500 
of gross income received by you in your own name or by any other 
person for your use or benefit.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive share 
of partnership gross income, and alimony, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than $2,500, list the name of the 
company, its address, and its principal business activity (computer 
manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded $2,500, list the name of the 
firm, its address, and its principal business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and your 
gross income from the business exceeded $2,500, list the name of 
the business, its address, and its principal business activity (retail 
gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and bonds, 
list each individual company from which you derived more than 
$2,500. Do not aggregate all of your investment income.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income the 
purchaser’s name, address and principal business activity. If the 
purchaser’s identity is unknown, such as where securities listed 
on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the source of 
income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) stock," for 
example.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating interest 
from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the name of the 
institution, its address, and its principal business activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, clients, 

and other sources of income to businesses in which you own an interest. 
It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind of income should 
be reported in Part A "Primary Sources of Income," if it meets the reporting 
threshold. You will not have anything to report unless, during the disclosure 
period:

(1) You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable or
beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of

a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC, limited partnership, 
proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc., doing business in Florida); 
and,
(2) You received more than $5,000 of your gross income during the
disclosure period from that business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then for that 
business entity you must list every source of income to the business entity 
which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross income (computed on 
the basis of the business entity's most recently completed fiscal year), the 
source’s address, and the source's principal business activity.

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from which 
you received more than $5,000. If only one customer, a uniform rental 
company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning business, you 
must list the name of the uniform rental company, its address, and its 
principal business activity (uniform rentals).  
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping mall 
and your partnership income exceeded the above thresholds. List each 
tenant of the mall that provided more than 10% of the partnership's gross 
income and the tenant's address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in Florida 

in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the disclosure 
period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not required to list 
your residences. You should list any vacation homes if you derive income 
from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary of a 
trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own more than 
5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. The value of the 
property may be determined by the most recently assessed value for tax 
purposes, in the absence of a more current appraisal.

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to enable 
anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street address should 
be used, if one exists. 

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during the 

disclosure period, was worth more than $10,000 and state the business 
entity to which the property related. Intangible personal property includes 
things such as cash on hand, stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle 
leases, interests in businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed 
you, Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida 
Prepaid College Plan, and bank accounts. Intangible personal property 
also includes investment products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and 
the Florida College Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained in 
a brokerage account, IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan is your 
asset—not the account or plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses 
you own, jewelry, and paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles 
relating to the same business entity may be aggregated; for example, CDs 
and savings accounts with the same bank. Property owned as tenants by 
the entirety or as joint tenants with right of survivorship should be valued at 
100%.  The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s present value minus the 
lease residual (a number found on the lease document).

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed more 

than $10,000 at any time during the disclosure period. The amount of the
liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due payments and all 
unpaid prospective lease payments. You are not required to list the amount 
of any debt. You do not have to disclose credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness on a life 
insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or contingent liabilities. A
“contingent liability” is one that will become an actual liability only when one 
or more future events occur or fail to occur, such as where you are liable
only as a guarantor, surety, or endorser on a promissory note. If you are a 
“co-maker” and are jointly liable or jointly and severally liable, then it is not a 
contingent liability.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(5), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state and 

federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan associations; 
cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage companies; credit 
unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage licensees; pari-mutuel 
wagering companies, utility companies, entities controlled by the Public 
Service Commission; and entities granted a franchise to operate by either a 
city or a county government. 

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the disclosure period an 
interest in, or held any of certain positions with the types of businesses listed 
above. You must make this disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or 
indirectly in the form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during 
the disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of one 
of the types of business entities listed above. You also must complete this part 
of the form for each of these types of businesses for which you are, or were at 
any time during the disclosure period, an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or
agent (other than a resident agent solely for service of process). 

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address and 
principal business activity, and the position held with the business (if any). If
you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business, indicate that fact and 
describe the nature of your interest. 

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]
If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer whose 

service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code
of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records
and open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on 
this form that you have taken such training.

(End of Dollar Value Thresholds Instructions.)

PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to 
disclose the amount of income received, and you need not list your 
public salary received from serving in the position(s) which requires 
you to file this form, but this amount should be included when 
calculating your gross income for the disclosure period. The income of 
your spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to 
you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest or 
dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should include all of that 
income when calculating your gross income and disclose the source of 
that income if it exceeded the threshold.

Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and principal 
business activity of each source of your income which exceeded 5% 
of the gross income received by you in your own name or by any other 
person for your benefit or use during the disclosure period.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than 5% of your gross income from 
the company, list the name of the company, its address, and its 
principal business activity (computer manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded 5% of your gross income, 
then list the name of the firm, its address, and its principal 
business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and 
your gross income from the business exceeded 5% of your total 
gross income, list the name of the business, its address, and its 
principal business activity (retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and 
bonds, list each individual company from which you derived 

more than 5% of your gross income. Do not aggregate all of your 
investment income.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income 
the purchaser’s name, address, and principal business activity. 
If the purchaser's identity is unknown, such as where securities 
listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the 
source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) 
stock," for example.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own 
an interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind
of income should be reported in Part A, "Primary Sources of Income,"
if it meets the reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report 
unless  during the disclosure period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an 
equitable or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or 
capital stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC, 
limited partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc., 
doing business in Florida); and,
(2)  You received more than 10% of your gross income from that 
business entity; and, 
(3)  You received more than $1,500 in gross income from that 
business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then 
for that business entity you must list every source of income to the 
business entity which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross
income (computed on the basis of the business entity’s most recently
completed fiscal year), the source’s address, and the source’s 
principal business activity.

Filers have the option of reporting based on either thresholds that are comparative (usually, based on percentage values) or 
thresholds that are based on absolute dollar values.  The instructions on the following pages specifically describe the different 
thresholds. Check the box that reflects the choice you have made. You must use the type of threshold you have chosen for each 
part of the form. In other words, if you choose to report based on absolute dollar value thresholds, you cannot use a percentage 
threshold on any part of the form.

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTEREST

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 5CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C.. PAGE 4



PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal sources 

of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to disclose the 
amount of income received, and you need not list your public salary from 
serving in the position(s) which requires you to file this form. The income
of your spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income
to you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest 
or dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should disclose the 
source of that income if it exceeded the threshold.

 Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and principal 
business activity of each source of your income which exceeded $2,500 
of gross income received by you in your own name or by any other 
person for your use or benefit.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive share 
of partnership gross income, and alimony, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than $2,500, list the name of the 
company, its address, and its principal business activity (computer
manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded $2,500, list the name of the 
firm, its address, and its principal business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and your 
gross income from the business exceeded $2,500, list the name of 
the business, its address, and its principal business activity (retail 
gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and bonds, 
list each individual company from which you derived more than 
$2,500. Do not aggregate all of your investment income.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income the 
purchaser’s name, address and principal business activity. If the 
purchaser’s identity is unknown, such as where securities listed
on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the source of 
income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) stock," for 
example.
— If more than $2,500 of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating interest 
from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the name of the
institution, its address, and its principal business activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, clients, 

and other sources of income to businesses in which you own an interest. 
It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind of income should
be reported in Part A "Primary Sources of Income," if it meets the reporting 
threshold. You will not have anything to report unless, during the disclosure
period:

(1)  You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an equitable or 
beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of 

a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC, limited partnership, 
proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc., doing business in Florida); 
and,
(2)  You received more than $5,000 of your gross income during the 
disclosure period from that business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then for that 
business entity you must list every source of income to the business entity 
which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross income (computed on
the basis of the business entity's most recently completed fiscal year), the 
source’s address, and the source's principal business activity.

Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from which
you received more than $5,000. If only one customer, a uniform rental
company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning business, you
must list the name of the uniform rental company, its address, and its
principal business activity (uniform rentals). 
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping mall
and your partnership income exceeded the above thresholds. List each 
tenant of the mall that provided more than 10% of the partnership's gross 
income and the tenant's address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in Florida 

in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during the disclosure 
period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You are not required to list
your residences. You should list any vacation homes if you derive income 
from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a beneficiary of a 
trust that owns the property, as well as situations where you own more than
5% of a partnership or corporation that owns the property. The value of the 
property may be determined by the most recently assessed value for tax 
purposes, in the absence of a more current appraisal.

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to enable
anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street address should
be used, if one exists. 

PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)3, F.S.]
Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time during the 

disclosure period, was worth more than $10,000 and state the business 
entity to which the property related. Intangible personal property includes 
things such as cash on hand, stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle 
leases, interests in businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed 
you, Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida 
Prepaid College Plan, and bank accounts. Intangible personal property 
also includes investment products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and 
the Florida College Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained in 
a brokerage account, IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan is your 
asset—not the account or plan itself. Things like automobiles and houses
you own, jewelry, and paintings are not intangible property.  Intangibles 
relating to the same business entity may be aggregated; for example, CDs 
and savings accounts with the same bank. Property owned as tenants by 
the entirety or as joint tenants with right of survivorship should be valued at 
100%.  The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s present value minus the 
lease residual (a number found on the lease document).

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed more 

than $10,000 at any time during the disclosure period. The amount of the 
liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due payments and all 
unpaid prospective lease payments. You are not required to list the amount 
of any debt. You do not have to disclose credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness on a life 
insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or contingent liabilities. A 
“contingent liability” is one that will become an actual liability only when one 
or more future events occur or fail to occur, such as where you are liable 
only as a guarantor, surety, or endorser on a promissory note. If you are a 
“co-maker” and are jointly liable or jointly and severally liable, then it is not a 
contingent liability.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145(5), F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state and 

federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan associations; 
cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage companies; credit 
unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage licensees; pari-mutuel 
wagering companies, utility companies, entities controlled by the Public 
Service Commission; and entities granted a franchise to operate by either a 
city or a county government. 

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the disclosure period an 
interest in, or held any of certain positions with the types of businesses listed 
above. You must make this disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or 
indirectly in the form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during 
the disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock of one 
of the types of business entities listed above. You also must complete this part 
of the form for each of these types of businesses for which you are, or were at 
any time during the disclosure period, an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or 
agent (other than a resident agent solely for service of process).  

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address and 
principal business activity, and the position held with the business (if any). If 
you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business, indicate that fact and 
describe the nature of your interest.  

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, 
you are required to complete four hours of ethics training which 
addresses Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code 
of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records 
and open meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on 
this form that you have taken such training.

(End of Dollar Value Thresholds Instructions.)

PART A — PRIMARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)1, F.S.]
Part A is intended to require the disclosure of your principal 

sources of income during the disclosure period. You do not have to 
disclose the amount of income received, and you need not list your 
public salary received from serving in the position(s) which requires 
you to file this form, but this amount should be included when 
calculating your gross income for the disclosure period. The income of 
your spouse need not be disclosed; however, if there is joint income to 
you and your spouse from property you own jointly (such as interest or 
dividends from a bank account or stocks), you should include all of that 
income when calculating your gross income and disclose the source of 
that income if it exceeded the threshold.

Please list in this part of the form the name, address, and principal 
business activity of each source of your income which exceeded 5% 
of the gross income received by you in your own name or by any other 
person for your benefit or use during the disclosure period.

"Gross income" means the same as it does for income tax 
purposes, even if the income is not actually taxable, such as interest 
on tax-free bonds. Examples include: compensation for services, 
income from business, gains from property dealings, interest, rents, 
dividends, pensions, IRA distributions, social security, distributive 
share of partnership gross income, and alimony, but not child support.

Examples:
— If you were employed by a company that manufactures 
computers and received more than 5% of your gross income from 
the company, list the name of the company, its address, and its 
principal business activity (computer manufacturing).
— If you were a partner in a law firm and your distributive share 
of partnership gross income exceeded 5% of your gross income, 
then list the name of the firm, its address, and its principal 
business activity (practice of law).
— If you were the sole proprietor of a retail gift business and 
your gross income from the business exceeded 5% of your total 
gross income, list the name of the business, its address, and its 
principal business activity (retail gift sales).
— If you received income from investments in stocks and 
bonds, list each individual company from which you derived 

more than 5% of your gross income. Do not aggregate all of your 
investment income.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was gain from the sale 
of property (not just the selling price), list as a source of income 
the purchaser’s name, address, and principal business activity. 
If the purchaser's identity is unknown, such as where securities 
listed on an exchange are sold through a brokerage firm, the 
source of income should be listed as "sale of (name of company) 
stock," for example.
— If more than 5% of your gross income was in the form of 
interest from one particular financial institution (aggregating 
interest from all CD’s, accounts, etc., at that institution), list the 
name of the institution, its address, and its principal business 
activity.

PART B — SECONDARY SOURCES OF INCOME
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)2, F.S.]
This part is intended to require the disclosure of major customers, 

clients, and other sources of income to businesses in which you own 
an interest. It is not for reporting income from second jobs. That kind 
of income should be reported in Part A, "Primary Sources of Income," 
if it meets the reporting threshold. You will not have anything to report 
unless  during the disclosure period:

(1) You owned (either directly or indirectly in the form of an
equitable or beneficial interest) more than 5% of the total assets or
capital stock of a business entity (a corporation, partnership, LLC,
limited partnership, proprietorship, joint venture, trust, firm, etc.,
doing business in Florida); and,
(2) You received more than 10% of your gross income from that
business entity; and,
(3) You received more than $1,500 in gross income from that
business entity.

If your interests and gross income exceeded these thresholds, then 
for that business entity you must list every source of income to the 
business entity which exceeded 10% of the business entity’s gross 
income (computed on the basis of the business entity’s most recently 
completed fiscal year), the source’s address, and the source’s 
principal business activity.

Filers have the option of reporting based on either thresholds that are comparative (usually, based on percentage values) or
thresholds that are based on absolute dollar values.  The instructions on the following pages specifically describe the different 
thresholds. Check the box that reflects the choice you have made. You must use the type of threshold you have chosen for each 
part of the form. In other words, if you choose to report based on absolute dollar value thresholds, you cannot use a percentage 
threshold on any part of the form.

MANNER OF CALCULATING REPORTABLE INTEREST

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN DOLLAR VALUE THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

IF YOU HAVE CHOSEN COMPARATIVE (PERCENTAGE) THRESHOLDS
THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS APPLY

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 5CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C.. PAGE 4



Examples:
— You are the sole proprietor of a dry cleaning business, from 
which you received more than 10% of your gross income—an 
amount that was more than $1,500. If only one customer, a uniform 
rental company, provided more than 10% of your dry cleaning 
business, you must list the name of the uniform rental company, 
its address, and its principal business activity (uniform rentals). 
— You are a 20% partner in a partnership that owns a shopping 
mall and your partnership income exceeded the thresholds listed 
above. You should list each tenant of the mall that provided more 
than 10% of the partnership’s gross income, and the tenant’s 
address and principal business activity.

PART C — REAL PROPERTY
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
In this part, list the location or description of all real property in 

Florida in which you owned directly or indirectly at any time during 
the disclosure period in excess of 5% of the property’s value. You 
are not required to list your residences. You should list any vacation 
homes, if you derive income from them.

Indirect ownership includes situations where you are a 
beneficiary of a trust that owns the property, as well as situations 
where you own more than 5% of a partnership or corporation that 
owns the property. The value of the property may be determined by 
the most recently assessed value for tax purposes, in the absence 
of a more current appraisal.

The location or description of the property should be sufficient to 
enable anyone who looks at the form to identify the property. A street 
address should be used, if one exists. 
PART D — INTANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY

[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(a)3, F.S.]
 Describe any intangible personal property that, at any time 
during the disclosure period, was worth more than 10% of your total 
assets, and state the business entity to which the property related. 
Intangible personal property includes things such as cash on hand, 
stocks, bonds, certificates of deposit, vehicle leases, interests in 
businesses, beneficial interests in trusts, money owed you, Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (DROP) accounts, the Florida Prepaid 
College Plan, and bank accounts. Intangible personal property also 
includes investment products held in IRAs, brokerage accounts, and 
the Florida College Investment Plan.  Note that the product contained 
in a brokerage account, IRA, or the Florida College Investment Plan 
is your asset—not the account or plan itself. Things like automobiles 
and houses you own, jewelry, and paintings are not intangible 
property.  Intangibles relating to the same business entity may be 
aggregated; for example, CD’s and savings accounts with the same 
bank. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the intangible property 
exceeds 10% of your total assets, total the fair market value of 
all of your assets (including real property, intangible property, and 
tangible personal property such as jewelry, furniture, etc.). When 
making this calculation, do not subtract any liabilities (debts) that 
may relate to the property. Multiply the total figure by 10% to arrive 
at the disclosure threshold. List only the intangibles that exceed 
this threshold amount. The value of a leased vehicle is the vehicle’s 
present value minus the lease residual (a number which can be 
found on the lease document). Property that is only jointly owned 
property should be valued according to the percentage of your joint 
ownership. Property owned as tenants by the entirety or as joint 
tenants with right of survivorship should be valued at 100%. None of 
your calculations or the value of the property have to be disclosed on 
the form. 

Example: You own 50% of the stock of a small corporation that 
is worth $100,000, the estimated fair market value of your home 
and other property (bank accounts, automobile, furniture, etc.) 
is $200,000. As your total assets are worth $250,000, you must 
disclose intangibles worth over $25,000. Since the value of the 
stock exceeds this threshold, you should list “stock” and the 
name of the corporation. If your accounts with a particular bank 
exceed $25,000, you should list “bank accounts” and bank’s 
name.

PART E — LIABILITIES
[Required by s. 112.3145(3)(b)4, F.S.]
List the name and address of each creditor to whom you owed any 

amount that, at any time during the disclosure period, exceeded your 
net worth. You are not required to list the amount of any debt or your 
net worth. You do not have to disclose: credit card and retail installment 
accounts, taxes owed (unless reduced to a judgment), indebtedness 
on a life insurance policy owed to the company of issuance, or 
contingent liabilities. A “contingent liability” is one that will become 
an actual liability only when one or more future events occur or fail 
to occur, such as where you are liable only as a guarantor, surety, or 
endorser on a promissory note. If you are a “co-maker” and are jointly 
liable or jointly and severally liable, it is not a contingent liability. 
 Calculations: To determine whether the debt exceeds your 
net worth, total all of your liabilities (including promissory notes, 
mortgages, credit card debts, judgments against you, etc.). The 
amount of the liability of a vehicle lease is the sum of any past-due 
payments and all unpaid prospective lease payments. Subtract 
the sum total of your liabilities from the value of all your assets as 
calculated above for Part D. This is your “net worth.” List each creditor 
to whom your debt exceeded this amount unless it is one of the types 
of indebtedness listed in the paragraph above (credit card and retail 
installment accounts, etc.). Joint liabilities with others for which you 
are “jointly and severally liable,” meaning that you may be liable for 
either your part or the whole of the obligation, should be included in 
your calculations at 100% of the amount owed.

Example: You owe $15,000 to a bank for student loans, $5,000 
for credit card debts, and $60,000 (with spouse) to a savings 
and loan for a home mortgage. Your home (owned by you and 
your spouse) is worth $80,000 and your other property is worth 
$20,000. Since your net worth is $20,000 ($100,000 minus 
$80,000), you must report only the name and address of the 
savings and loan.

PART F — INTERESTS IN SPECIFIED BUSINESSES
[Required by s. 112.3145, F.S.]
The types of businesses covered in this disclosure include: state 

and federally chartered banks; state and federal savings and loan 
associations; cemetery companies; insurance companies; mortgage 
companies; credit unions; small loan companies; alcoholic beverage 
licensees; pari-mutuel wagering companies, utility companies, entities 
controlled by the Public Service Commission; and entities granted a 
franchise to operate by either a city or a county government.

Disclose in this part the fact that you owned during the 
disclosure period an interest in, or held any of certain positions with, 
the types of businesses listed above. You are required to make this 
disclosure if you own or owned (either directly or indirectly in the 
form of an equitable or beneficial interest) at any time during the 
disclosure period more than 5% of the total assets or capital stock 
of one of the types of business entities listed above. You also must 
complete this part of the form for each of these types of businesses 
for which you are, or were at any time during the disclosure period, 
an officer, director, partner, proprietor, or agent (other than a resident 
agent solely for service of process).

If you have or held such a position or ownership interest in one of 
these types of businesses, list the name of the business, its address 
and principal business activity, and the position held with the business 
(if any). If you own(ed) more than a 5% interest in the business,  
indicate that fact and describe the nature of your interest.

PART G — TRAINING CERTIFICATION
[Required by s. 112.3142, F.S.]

 If you are a Constitutional or elected municipal officer whose 
service began before March 31 of the year for which you are filing, you 
are required to complete four hours of ethics training which addresses 
Article II, Section 8 of the Florida Constitution, the Code of Ethics 
for Public Officers and Employees, and the public records and open 
meetings laws of the state. You are required to certify on this form that 
you have taken such training.

     (End of Percentage Thresholds Instructions.)

NOTICE 
Annual Statements of Financial Interests are due July 1. If the annual form is not filed or postmarked by September 1, 
an automatic fine of $25 for each day late will be imposed, up to a maximum penalty of $1,500.  Failure to file also can 
result in removal from public office or employment. [s. 112.3145, F.S.]

In addition, failure to make any required disclosure constitutes grounds for and may be punished by one or more of the 
following:  disqualification from being on the ballot, impeachment, removal or suspension from office or employment, 
demotion, reduction in salary, reprimand, or a civil penalty not exceeding $10,000. [s. 112.317, F.S.]

1) Elected public officials not serving in a political subdivision of the
state and any person appointed to fill a vacancy in such office, unless
required to file full disclosure on Form 6.

2) Appointed members of each board, commission, authority, or
council having statewide jurisdiction, excluding members of solely advisory 
bodies, but including judicial nominating commission members; Directors 
of Enterprise Florida, Scripps Florida Funding Corporation, and Career 
Source Florida; and members of the Council on the Social Status of Black 
Men and Boys; the Executive Director, Governors, and senior managers of
Citizens Property Insurance Corporation; Governors and senior managers 
of Florida Workers' Compensation Joint Underwriting Association; board 
members of the Northeast Fla. Regional Transportation Commission; board 
members of Triumph Gulf Coast, Inc; board members of Florida Is For 
Veterans, Inc.; and members of the Technology Advisory Council within the 
Agency for State Technology.

3) The Commissioner of Education, members of the State Board 
of Education, the Board of Governors, the local Boards of Trustees and 
Presidents of state universities, and the Florida Prepaid College Board.

4) Persons elected to office in any political subdivision (such as
municipalities, counties, and special districts) and any person appointed to 
fill a vacancy in such office, unless required to file Form 6.

5) Appointed members of the following boards, councils, 
commissions, authorities, or other bodies of county, municipality, school 
district, independent special district, or other political subdivision: the 
governing body of the subdivision; community college or junior college 
district boards of trustees; boards having the power to enforce local code 
provisions; boards of adjustment; community redevelopment agencies; 
planning or zoning boards having the power to recommend, create, or 
modify land planning or zoning within a political subdivision, except for 
citizen advisory committees, technical coordinating committees, and similar 
groups who only have the power to make recommendations to planning 
or zoning boards, and except for representatives of a military installation 
acting on behalf of all military installations within that jurisdiction; pension 
or retirement boards empowered to invest pension or retirement funds 
or determine entitlement to or amount of pensions or other retirement 
benefits.

6) Any appointed member of a local government board who is 
required to file a statement of financial interests by the appointing authority 
or the enabling legislation, ordinance, or resolution creating the board.

7) Persons holding any of these positions in local government: 
mayor; county or city manager; chief administrative employee or finance 

director of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision; county or 
municipal attorney; chief county or municipal building inspector; county 
or municipal water resources coordinator; county or municipal pollution 
control director; county or municipal environmental control director; county 
or municipal administrator with power to grant or deny a land development 
permit; chief of police; fire chief; municipal clerk; appointed district school 
superintendent; community college president; district medical examiner; 
purchasing agent (regardless of title) having the authority to make any 
purchase exceeding $20,000 for the local governmental unit.

8) Officers and employees of entities serving as chief administrative
officer of a political subdivision.

9) Members of governing boards of charter schools operated by a 
city or other public entity. 

10) Employees in the office of the Governor or of a Cabinet member
who are exempt from the Career Service System, excluding secretarial, 
clerical, and similar positions.

11) The following positions in each state department, commission, 
board, or council: Secretary, Assistant or Deputy Secretary, Executive
Director, Assistant or Deputy Executive Director, and anyone having the
power normally conferred upon such persons, regardless of title.

12) The following positions in each state department or division: 
Director, Assistant or Deputy Director, Bureau Chief, Assistant Bureau 
Chief, and any person having the power normally conferred upon such 
persons, regardless of title.

13) Assistant State Attorneys, Assistant Public Defenders, criminal 
conflict and civil regional counsel, and assistant criminal conflict and civil 
regional counsel, Public Counsel, full-time state employees serving as 
counsel or assistant counsel to a state agency, administrative law judges,
and hearing officers.

14) The Superintendent or Director of a state mental health institute 
established for training and research in the mental health field, or any major 
state institution or facility established for corrections, training, treatment, or 
rehabilitation.

15) State agency Business Managers, Finance and Accounting
Directors, Personnel Officers, Grant Coordinators, and purchasing agents
(regardless of title) with power to make a purchase exceeding $20,000.

16) The following positions in legislative branch agencies: each 
employee (other than those employed in maintenance, clerical, secretarial, 
or similar positions and legislative assistants exempted by the presiding 
officer of their house); and each employee of the Commission on
Ethics.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING FORM 1:
INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION (Top of Form): If your 
name, mailing address, public agency, and position are already 
printed on the form, you do not need to provide this information 
unless it should be changed.  To change any of this information, 
write the correct information on the form, and contact your 
agency's financial disclosure coordinator.  You can find your 
coordinator on the Commission on Ethics website: www.ethics.
state.fl.us. 
NAME OF AGENCY: The name of the governmental unit 
which you serve or served, by which you are or were employed, 
or for which you are a candidate. 
OFFICE OR POSITION HELD OR SOUGHT: The title of 
the office or position you hold, are seeking, or held during the 
disclosure period even if you have since left that position. If you 
are a candidate for office or are a new employee or appointee, 
check the appropriate box.

PUBLIC RECORD: The disclosure form and everything 
attached to it is a public record. Your Social Security Number 
is not required and you should redact it from any documents 
you file. If you are an active or former officer or employee listed 
in Section 119.071, F.S., whose home address is exempt from 
disclosure, the Commission will maintain that confidentiality if 
you submit a written request.  
DISCLOSURE PERIOD: The tax year for most individuals 
is the calendar year (January 1 through December 31). If that 
is the case for you, then your financial interests should be 
reported for the calendar year 2017; check that box. If you file 
your IRS tax return based on a tax year that is not the calendar 
year, you should specify the dates of your tax year in this 
portion of the form and check the appropriate box. This is the 
"disclosure period" for your report.

WHO MUST FILE FORM 1:

CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 6 CE FORM 1 - Effective: January 1, 2018. Incorporated by reference in Rule 34-8.202, F.A.C. PAGE 3



NEW SUPERVISOR INFORMATION SHEET 

PLEASE RETURN COMPLETED FORM TO DPFG 

Development Planning & Financing Group, Inc. 
Records l\Ianagement and Administration 
15310 Amberly Drive 

Suite 175 
Tampa, Florida 33647 

COD: 

NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

COUNTY OF RESIDENCE: 

PHONE: 

FAX: 

CELL: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 



 
  

EXHIBIT 3. 
 



 
 

Panther Trace II Community Development District 
15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175 
Tampa, FL 33647 
 

 

 

November 26th, 2018 

 

 

 

Having served the full length of my term as a Supervisor for the Panther Trace II Community 

Development District, I am resigning my position as of November 26, 2018.  

 

Thank you 

 

 

Anthony Cunha 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT 4. 
 



RESOLUTION 2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION RE-DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE  
PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community Development 
District at the business meeting held on November 26, 2018, desires to appoint the below recited 
persons to the offices specified. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE PANTHER TRACE II COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 

1.  The following persons were appointed to the offices shown, to wit: 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 Vice Chairman 
 

 Raymond Lotito Secretary 
 

 Patricia Comings-Thibault Treasurer 
 

 Maik Aagaard Assistant Treasurer 
 

 Janet Johns Assistant Secretary 
 

 Assistant Secretary 
 

  Assistant Secretary 
 

 Assistant Secretary 
 
 
 

2.  That this resolution supersedes all previous resolutions and motions designating, 

electing or appointing officers adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace 

II Community Development District and are hereby declared null and void. 

Adopted this 26th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 

Secretary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 5. 



  LMP November Maintenance Worksheet     
    
Date: 11-16-2018 Property               Panther Trace II 
                 
Foreman: Jimmy Molina, Obdulio Mayen   Mgr: Paul Gomez 

   
 Category Comments 
X  Mow 

 
Completed 

X Edge 
 

Completed  

X Monofilament Trim 
 

Completed  

X Shrub/Groundcover Trim 
 

Completed  
 

X Blow 
 

This include pool.  
 

X Debris Disposal-Details  
 

Change out all trashcan bags at the pool, outside the pool & tennis court.  
 

� Bed Weed Control for R-UP  
                                

 

X Tree Pruner 
Palm pruner 

Proposal #49245 woodline pushback was delayed and reschedule  
11-26-2018. 

� Insect/Disease Control 
 

 

X Irrigation Inspection 
 

Work in progress irrigation is 99% working.  

� Tree Fertilization 
 

 

� Shrub Fertilization 
 

 

X Turf Fertilization 
 

In the process of scheduling fertilizer now that we have good irrigation 
running.  

� Turf Weed Control 
 

 

�  Fire Ant Control              
X Seasonal Color Maintenance 

 Annuals  
Proposal #48592 has been completed Nov 8,2018. 
 

� Perennials Maintenance 
 

 

X Mulching 
 

Proposal #48568 has been completed Nov 16,2018.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Additional Comments 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 6. 
(under separate cover)



EXHIBIT 7. 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
PANTHER TRACE II 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3
4

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Panther Trace II Community 5 
Development District was held on Monday, October 22, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. at the Panther Trace II 6 
Clubhouse, 11518 Newgate Crest Drive, Riverview, Florida 33579. 7

8
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 9 

Mr. Lotito called the meeting to order and conducted roll call. 10 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 11 

Jeff Spiess Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman 12 
David Steppy Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 13 
Pamela Wood Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 

Also present were: 15 

Raymond Lotito District Manager, DPFG Management & Consulting 16 
LLC 17 

John Vericker District Counsel, Straley Robin Vericker 18 
Anna Ramirez Amenity Manager 19 
Paul Gomez Landscape Maintenance Professionals 20 

21 
The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the October 22, 2018 Panther Trace II 22 
CDD Board of Supervisors meeting. 23 

24 
Pledge of Allegiance 25 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 26 
27 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 28 

Mr. Lotito opened the floor for the audience to make comments on the agenda items being 29 
presented. There being none, next item followed. 30 

31 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Landscape & Pond Maintenance 32 

Mr. Gomez presented and reviewed all of the items of the Landscape Maintenance Professionals, 33 
Inc. (“LMP”) Landscape & Irrigation Monthly Report (Exhibit 1). Discussion ensued regarding cutbacks 34 
and herbicide treatment of the Brazilian pepper trees. 35 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Steppy, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 36 
the cutbacks and herbicide treatment of the Brazilian pepper trees not to exceed (“NTE”) $2,337.00 per 37 
day for five (5) days for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 38 

39 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administrative Matters 40 

Mr. Lotito presented the minutes of the Board of Supervisors regular meeting held on September 41 
24, 2018 (Exhibit 3), the Unaudited September 2018 Financials Statements (Exhibit 4), and the 42 
Operations & Maintenance Expenditures for September 2018 (Exhibit 5) to the Board for their 43 
consideration and acceptance. Discussion ensued. 44 

A. Exhibit 3: Consideration and Approval of the September 24, 2018 Meeting Minutes45 



Panther Trace II CDD October 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 3 
 

On a MOTION by Mr. Steppy, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 46 
the minutes of the Board of Supervisors regular meeting held on September 24, 2018 for the Panther 47 
Trace II Community Development District. 48 

B. Exhibit 4: Acceptance of the Unaudited September 2018 Financials Statements 49 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board accepted 50 
the Unaudited September 2018 Financials Statements for the Panther Trace II Community Development 51 
District. 52 

C. Exhibit 5: Acceptance of the Operations & Maintenance Expenditures September 2018 53 

On a MOTION by Mr. Steppy, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board accepted 54 
the Operations & Maintenance Expenditures for September 2018 for the Panther Trace II Community 55 
Development District. 56 

 57 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Matters 58 

Mr. Lotito presented the invoice from Yellowstone for landscaping (Exhibit 6), the contract with 59 
Tampa Electric (“TECO”) for street lighting (Exhibit 7), and the updated TECO proposal (Exhibit 8) to 60 
the Board for their consideration and approval. Discussion ensued in reference to the final Yellowstone 61 
landscape monthly maintenance invoice. 62 

A. Exhibit 6: Consideration and Approval of Yellowstone Landscape Invoice - $12,257.00 63 

On a MOTION by Mr. Steppy, SECONDED by Mr. Spiess, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 64 
the payment of the Yellowstone Landscape Invoice in the amount of $12,257.00 for the Panther Trace II 65 
Community Development District. 66 

B. Exhibit 7: Consideration and Approval of the Contract with TECO for Street Lighting 67 

On a MOTION by Mr. Spiess, SECONDED by Mr. Steppy, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 68 
the contract with TECO for street lighting for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 69 

 70 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 71 

Mr. Lotito opened the floor for the district staff to present and review the items of their staff 72 
reports. Mr. Lotito stated that there have been no responses to the audit request for proposal (“RFP”). 73 
District counsel, Mr. Vericker, asked for the Board’s direction concerning the set-back of privately owned 74 
fences from CDD property line. Discussion ensued. Ms. Ramirez reviewed all of the items of the Amenity 75 
Manager October 2018 Operations Report (Exhibit 9) and presented the contract with S.F.C.G. for 76 
holiday lighting, the contracts from Jayman Enterprises, LLC and D.A.D. Services for pressure washing 77 
services, and the contract with the towing company to the Board for their consideration and approval. 78 
Discussion ensued. 79 

On a MOTION by Mr. Steppy, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board approved 80 
the Amenity Manager October 2018 Operations Report inclusive of the contract with S.F.C.G. for 81 
holiday lighting, the contract with D.A.D. Services for pressure washing of the community signs, the 82 
contract with D.A.D. Services for pressure washing of the playground equipment, and the contract with 83 
the towing company for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 84 

 85 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 86 



Panther Trace II CDD October 22, 2018 
Regular Meeting Page 3 of 3 
 

Mr. Lotito opened the floor for the audience to make comments on the agenda items that were 87 
presented. There being none, next item followed. 88 

 89 
EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests 90 

Mr. Lotito opened the floor for the supervisors to present their requests. There being none, next 91 
item followed. 92 
 93 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 94 

Mr. Lotito asked for final questions, comments, or corrections before adjourning the meeting. 95 
There being none, Mr. Steppy made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  96 

On a MOTION by Mr. Steppy, SECONDED by Ms. Wood, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 97 
adjourned the meeting for the Panther Trace II Community Development District. 98 

*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 99 
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 100 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 101 
 102 
Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 103 
meeting held on ________________________. 104 
 105 

Signature  Signature 

 106 

Printed Name  Printed Name 
 107 
Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman  108 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 8. 



October 31, 2018

Panther Trace II

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)



 GENERAL SERIES 2014

 FUND DEBT SERVICE TOTAL
  

1 ASSETS:  

2

3  CASH - OPERATING ACCOUNT 76,190$               -$                     76,190$             

4  PETTY CASH 100                      -                       100                    

6  CASH - DEBIT CARD 1,575                   -                       1,575                 

7

8  INVESTMENTS:

9      MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT 565,444               -                       565,444             

10      REVENUE TRUST -                      293,462               293,462             

12      RESERVE CASH TRUST -                      327,553               327,553             

13      REDEMPTION - PREPAYMENT TRUST -                      31                        31                      

15  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 917                      -                       917                    

16  ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE (TAX ROLL) 907,463               817,480               1,724,943          

17  DUE FROM GF -                      5,575                   5,575                 
18  PREPAID EXPENSES -                      -                       -                     

19  DEPOSITS 2,162                   -                       2,162                 

20 TOTAL ASSETS 1,553,851$          1,444,101$          2,997,952$        

21

22

23 LIABILITIES:

24

25  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 42,090$               -$                     42,090$             

27  DUE TO DEVELOPER 17,959                 -                       17,959               

28  DEFERRED REVENUE (TAX ROLL) 907,463               817,480               1,724,943          

29  ACCRUED EXPENDITURES 150                      -                       150                    

30  DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 5,575                   -                       5,575                 

32  

33 FUND BALANCE:
34

35  NONSPENDABLE:

36  PREPAID AND DEPOSITS 2,332                   -                       2,332                 

37 ASSIGNED:

38      THREE MONTH OPERATING RESERVE 210,878               -                       210,878             

39      FY16 RESERVE FOR R&R 32,619                 -                       32,619               

40      FY17 RESERVE FOR R&R 40,900                 -                       40,900               

41      FY18 RESERVE FOR R&R 41,200                 -                       41,200               

42      FY19 RESERVE FOR R&R 41,500                 -                       41,500               

43  RESTRICTED FOR:

44      DEBT SERVICE -                      626,621               626,621             

46  UNASSIGNED: 211,185               -                       211,185             

47

48 TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 1,553,851$          1,444,101$          2,997,952$        

Panther Trace II CDD

Balance Sheet

October 31, 2018

Page 2



FY2019 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

1 REVENUES

2 ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (BUDGETED NET) 907,430$                -$                           -$                   (a) -$                    

3 ASSESSMENTS - DEVELOPER -                      

4 INTEREST REVENUE 300                         25                              702                    677                     

5 RENTAL REVENUE 3,000                      250                            -                     (250)                    

6 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE (ACCESS KEYS & OTHER) -                          -                             -                     -                      

7 FUND BALANCE FORWARD (RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS) 36,550                    -                             -                     -                      

8 DISCOUNT -                          -                             -                     -                      

9 TOTAL REVENUES 947,280                  275                            702                    427                     

10

11 EXPENDITURES

12 BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PAYROLL 12,000                    1,000                         600                    400                     

13 PAYROLL TAXES 918                         77                              46                      31                       

14 PAYROLL SERVICES FEE 1,300                      108                            93                      

15 TRAVEL PER DIEM 250                         21                              -                     21                       

16 MANAGEMENT CONSULTING SERVICES                           48,000                    4,000                         4,000                 -                      

17 OFFICE SUPPLIES 150                         150                            239                    (89)                      

18 BANK FEES 200                         18                              18                      -                      

19 MISC. ADMIN. EXPENSE -                          -                             -                     -                      

20 MASS MAILING 2,000                      -                             -                     -                      

21 AUDITING                                                 4,200                      -                             -                     -                      

22 REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES 175                         175                            175                    -                      

23 LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS                                     1,000                      1,000                         -                     1,000                  

24 ENGINEERING SERVICES                                     6,000                      500                            -                     500                     

25 LEGAL SERVICES                                   20,000                    1,667                         -                     1,667                  

26 WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION 960                         80                              80                      -                      

27 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 97,153                    8,795                         5,251                 3,529                  

28

29 INSURANCE

30 INSURANCE (LIABILITY, PROPERTY & CASUALTY; BOND) 12,778                    12,055                       12,055               -                      

31 TOTAL INSURANCE 12,778                    12,055                       12,055               -                      

32

33 DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION

34 DISSEMINATION AGENT - BONDS 2,000                      -                             -                     -                      

35 ARBITRAGE REBATE 650                         -                             -                     -                      

36 TRUSTEE FEES 5,592                      5,592                         5,592                 -                      

37 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMINISTRATION 8,242                      5,592                         5,592                 -                      

38

39 SECURITY:

40 SECURITY SYSTEM - (ENVERA CONTRACT) 6,168                      1,542                         1,542                 -                      

41 SECURITY MONITORING - (EMG) 440                         110                            67                      43                       

42 SECURITY PATROL - (CBM) 34,200                    2,850                         1,205                 1,645                  

43 SECURITY SYSTEM - MAINTENANCE & IMP. 1,200                      280                            280                    -                      

44 TOTAL  SECURITY 42,008                    4,782                         3,094                 1,688                  

45

46 PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT EXPENSES:  

47 ELECTRICITY 168,000                  14,000                       442                    13,558                

48 STREETLIGHTING LEASE 25,000                    2,083                         2,030                 53                       

49 WATER 15,000                    1,250                         957                    293                     

50 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 1,750                      146                            225                    (79)                      

51 PET WASTE REMOVAL 12,480                    1,040                         540                    500                     

52 PEST CONTROL 400                         100                            -                     100                     

53 COMMUNICATIONS (TEL, INTERNET,  TECH, ETC) 2,280                      190                            203                    (13)                      

55 FACILITY MAINTENANCE  3,000                      250                            -                     250                     

56 WATERWAY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM - CONTRACT 19,020                    1,585                         -                     1,585                  

57 WATERWAY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM - OTHER 2,000                      -                             -                     -                      

58 ENTRY & WALLS MAINTENANCE 1,200                      100                            -                     100                     

59 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - CONTRACT 201,381                  16,782                       18,350               (1,568)                 

60 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE - OTHER 47,920                    3,993                         -                     3,993                  

61 IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE 2,000                      167                            -                     167                     

62 IRRIGATION COMPLIANCE REPORTING 2,700                      225                            -                     225                     

63 DECORATIVE LIGHTS &  MAINTENANCE 7,500                      5,230                         5,230                 -                      

64 SIGNAGE REPAIRS 1,200                      100                            -                     100                     

65 FIELD MISCELLANEOUS 2,500                      208                            1,450                 (1,242)                 

66 TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 515,331                  47,449                       29,427               18,022                

67

Panther Trace II CDD

General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Period from October 1, 2018 to October 31, 2018

Page 3



FY2019 VARIANCE

ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

Panther Trace II CDD

General Fund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Period from October 1, 2018 to October 31, 2018

68 CLUBHOUSE & AMENITY ADMINISTRATION:

69 AMENITY MANAGEMENT 46,000                    3,833                         1,680                 2,153                  

70 AMENITY MANAGEMENT (CELL PHONE & REIMB EXPENSES) 600                         50                              -                     50                       

71 FICA TAXES AMENITY EMPLOYEE - EMPLOYER PORTION -                          -                             129                    (129)                    

72 AMENITY MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENTS 1,500                      125                            1,070                 (945)                    

73 CLUBHOUSE  FACILITY MAINTENANCE - CLEANING 3,900                      325                            325                    -                      

74 CLUBHOUSE FACILITY MAINTENANCE - OTHER 12,000                    1,000                         -                     1,000                  

75 POOL MAINTENANCE 23,900                    1,992                         1,600                 392                     

76 POOL PERMITS 425                         -                             -                     -                      

77 POOL MAINTENANCE & MONITORING 9,500                      792                            -                     792                     

78 CLUBHOUSE MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES 3,000                      250                            -                     250                     

79 SPECIAL EVENTS 10,000                    833                            772                    61                       

80 PLAYGROUND MAINTENANCE 3,000                      250                            111                    139                     

82 CAPITAL OUTLAY 79,893                    -                             -                     -                      

83 RESERVE CAPITAL - POOL FURNITURE 20,160                    -                             -                     -                      

84 RESERVE CAPITAL - INTERIOR RENOVATIONS 16,390                    -                             -                     -                      

85 TOTAL  230,268                  9,450                         5,687                 3,763                  

86

87 BUDGETED INCREASE FUND BALANCE - CAPITAL RES. 41,500                    -                             -                     -                      

88

89

90 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 947,280                  88,124                       61,106               27,002                

91

92 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                              (87,849)                      (60,404)              27,429                

93

94 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                              (87,849)                      (60,404)              27,429                
95

96 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 571,473                  571,473                     641,017             641,017              

97 DECREASE IN FUND BALANCE (36,550)                   -                                 

98 INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE  41,500                    -                                 -                     -                      
99

100 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 576,423$                483,624$                   580,613$           668,446$            

101

102 a) Assessment budget reported at net and actual collections reported at net. 

103

104

105 Renewal & Replacement (Reserve)

106 FY 2016 145,600$                

107 FY 2017 40,900$                   

108 FY 2018 41,200$                   

109 FY 2019 41,500$                   

110 Total 269,200$                

111 FY17 Pool Finish Per Reserve Study (100,000)$               

112 FY17 Well Pumps per Reserve Study (10,080)$                 

113 FY 2018 Pool Filter Grid Replacement (2,901)$                    

114 Total Reserve Balance After FY18 Reserve Component Exp. 156,219$                

Page 4



VARIANCE

BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

1 REVENUE

2 ASSESSMENTS - ON ROLL (GROSS) 870,858$               -$                 -$                          (a) -$                            

3 INTEREST--INVESTMENT                                     -                            -                       800                       800                         

4 DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (34,834)                 -                       -                            -                              

6 MISCELLANEOUSE INCOME -                            -                       -                            -                              

7 TOTAL REVENUE 836,024                 -                       800                       800                         

8

9 EXPENDITURES

10 COUNTY ASSESSMENT COLL FEES 17,417                   -                       -                            -                              

11 INTEREST EXPENSE (NOV 2018)                   -                            -                       -                            -                              

12 INTEREST EXPENSE (MAY 2019, NOV 2019)                   369,986                 -                       -                            -                              

13 PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT (MAY 1, 2019) 445,000                 -                       -                            -                              

15

16 TOTAL EXPENDITURES 832,403                 -                       -                            -                              

17

18 EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3,621                     -                       800                       800                         

26

27 NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3,621                     -                       800                       800                         

28

29 FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            -                       625,820                625,820                  

30

31 FUND BALANCE - ENDING 3,621$                   -$                     626,620$              626,620$                

32

33 Note (A)  - Assessments are budgeted at gross and YTD budget is reported at net of discount assessment and county assessment

 collection fees. Actual on roll is reported at net. 

Panther Trace II CDD
DS Fund - Series 2014

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Period from October 1, 2018 to October 31, 2018

Page 5



 

 Bank United 

(Operating Acct) 

Balance Per Bank Statement 44,092.92$                 

Add: In Transit Transfers/Deposits  50,000.00$                 

Less: Outstanding Checks (17,903.40)                  

Adjusted Bank Balance 76,189.52$                 

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books 68,345.00$                 

Add: Cash Receipts 100,004.35                 

Less: Cash Disbursements (92,159.83)                  

Balance Per Books 76,189.52$                 

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Reconciliation

October 31, 2018

Page 6



Date Num Name Memo Receipts Disbursements Balance

BANK UNITED EOM BALANCE 9-30-2018 68,345.00             

10/01/2018 1566 DPFG MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - October 4,000.00 64,345.00

10/01/2018 1582 VENTURESIN.COM, INC Web Site Hosting - October 80.00 64,265.00

10/04/2018 1575 Jackson Construction & Design Inc. Concrete pouring and fence install 2,490.00 61,775.00

10/04/2018 1576 Holder's Outdoor Projects replace missing pavers 1,450.00 60,325.00

10/05/2018 10126DD ANNA RAMIREZ 9/16-9/30/18 - P/R 1,491.75 58,833.25

10/05/2018 ACH10052018 Paychex 9/16-9/30/18 - P/R 316.77 58,516.48

10/05/2018 ACH20181003 Paychex P/R Fee 56.40 58,460.08

10/09/2018 1038 Panther Trace  II. Transfer to Operating Account 50,000.00 108,460.08

10/09/2018 1567 CBM SERVICES GROUP 9/3-10/7 - Security Guard 1,478.25 106,981.83

10/09/2018 1568 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 9/1-9/30 - Internet/Phone 190.62 106,791.21

10/09/2018 1569 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Repair Missing Fence, 9/1-9/30 - Pet Waste Removal 530.00 106,261.21

10/09/2018 1572 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS, INC. Irrigation Repairs 20,439.92 85,821.29

10/11/2018 1577 LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE PROFESSIONALS, INC. Monthly ground maintenance 18,350.33 67,470.96

10/15/2018 1586 CBM SERVICES GROUP 10/8-10/14 - Security Guard 297.00 67,173.96

10/15/2018 1587 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS 10/1-10/31 - Internet/Phone 203.44 66,970.52

10/15/2018 1588 REPUBLIC SERVICES 10/1-10/31 - Solid Waste 109.88 66,860.64

10/15/2018 1589 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES Engineering Svcs thru 9/21/18 480.00 66,380.64

10/15/2018 1590 TAMPA PUBLISHING COM Legal Ad 752.00 65,628.64

10/15/2018 1591 TECO Electricity - September 14,000.76 51,627.88

10/15/2018 1592 ZEBRA CLEANING TEAM, INC. Pool Maint - October 1,600.00 50,027.88

10/16/2018 BANK UNITED Funds Transfer 900.00 49,127.88

10/19/2018 10127DD ANNA RAMIREZ 10/1-10/13 - P/R 1,491.75 47,636.13

10/22/2018 ACCH1019201 Paychex 10/1-10/13 - P/R 316.77 47,319.36

10/24/2018 1593 S.F.C.G. CONTRACTING AND CONSTRUCTI Holiday Lighting 2,615.00 42,089.36

10/24/2018 1594 CBM SERVICES GROUP 10/15-10/21 - Security Guard 297.00 41,792.36

10/24/2018 1595 DAD SERVICES Power Wash Signs 1,070.00 40,722.36

10/24/2018 1596 S.F.C.G. CONTRACTING AND CONSTRUCTI Holiday Lighting 2,615.00 44,704.36

10/24/2018 1597 MHD COMMUNICATIONS Card Reader Replacement 360.00 40,362.36

10/24/2018 BANK UNITED Funds Transfer 50,000.00 90,362.36

10/26/2018 10128DD ANTHONY CUNHA BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 184.70 90,177.66

10/26/2018 10130DD DAVID STEPPY BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 & 10/22/18 369.40 89,808.26

10/26/2018 10129 JEFFREY A. SPIESS BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 & 10/22/18 369.40 89,438.86

10/26/2018 10132DD Pamela S. Wood BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 & 10/22/18 369.40 89,069.46

10/26/2018 ACH10262018 Paychex BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 & 10/22/18 245.20 88,824.26

10/26/2018 10131DD SCOTT WARD BOS Mtg - 9/24/18 184.70 88,639.56

10/26/2018 ACH20181025 Paychex PR Fee 46.39 88,593.17

10/30/2018 1598 JAYMAN ENTERPRISES, LLC Toilet, pool & tennis court Maintenance 75.00 88,518.17

10/30/2018 1599 YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE Landscape Maint - August & Irrigation Repairs 12,324.00 76,194.17

10/31/2018 BANK UNITED Service Charge 9.00 76,185.17

10/31/2018 BANK UNITED Interest 4.35 76,189.52

100,004.35           92,159.83            76,189.52             

Panther Trace II CDD

Cash Register - FY2019

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 9. 











































































































































































 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 10 . 



    

      
  

  
 
 

    
    

 
 

Proposal to Provide 
Financial Auditing Services  
 

 
Panther Trace II  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

 
Proposal Due: November 15, 2018 - 11:00AM 
 
 

 
Submitted to: 
Panther Trace II Community Development District 
c/o Raymond Lotito, District Manager 
15310 Amberly Drive  

            Tampa, Florida 33647 
  

Submitted by: 
Antonio J. Grau, Partner 
Grau & Associates 
951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
Boca Raton, Florida 33431 
Tel  (561) 994-9299 / (800) 229-4728 
Fax  (561) 994-5823 
tony@graucpa.com / www.graucpa.com 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

mailto:tony@graucpa.com
http://www.graucpa.com/


    

Table of Contents  
   PAGE  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY / TRANSMITTAL LETTER ..................................................... 1 
FIRM QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE ..................................................................... 3 
STAFF QUALIFICATIONS ............................................................................................ 21 
REFERENCES .............................................................................................................. 28 
COST OF SERVICES ................................................................................................... 30 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ............................................................................... 32 
   

   
 
 



 

    

  951 Yamato Road, Suite 280 
      Boca Raton, Florida   33431 

      (561) 994-9299 ▪ (800) 299-4728 
       Fax (561) 994-5823 

 
 

 November 15, 2018 
 
Panther Trace II Community Development District 
c/o Raymond Lotito, District Manager 
15310 Amberly Drive  
Tampa, Florida 33647 
 
Re: Request for Proposal for Professional Auditing Services for the fiscal years ended 

September 30, 2018 with an option for two additional annual renewals. 
 
Grau & Associates (Grau) is pleased to respond to Panther Trace II Community Development 
District’s (the “District”) Request for Proposal (RFP), and look forward to working with you on your 
audit. We are a team of knowledgeable professionals with extensive experience in audits for 
organizations just like yours, and we know how to work with you to complete an effective and 
efficient audit.  

 
 Since our focus is on government, we fully understand the professional services and work 

products required to meet your RFP requirements. Our team provided services in excess of 
19,000 hours for our public sector clients last year, and we currently audit over 300 governmental 
entities. Our practice is unique as 98% of work is either audit or work related to government and 
non-profit entities.  

 
 In addition to our firm’s focus, Grau & Associates is a great fit for your audit for a variety of 

other reasons, including: 
 

• Experience  
Grau is proud of the fact that the personnel we assign to your audit are some of the most 
experienced auditors in the field. Unlike many other firms, our auditors work almost 
exclusively with governmental entities, which mean they are more knowledgeable and 
efficient on audits like yours. Our engagement partners have decades of experience and 
take a hands-on approach to our assignments, which all ensures a smoother process for 
you. Also, due to Grau’s very low turnover rate for our industry, you won’t have to worry 
about retraining your auditors from year to year.  
 

• Service 
Our clients are pleased with the level of personalized service they receive from our talented 
professionals. Because of our extensive experience, we are adept at making the transition 
to a new firm as smooth as possible. We work with you to resolve any issues and keep in 
regular contact so there are no surprises when the final report delivers. In fact, your 
engagement team will report any potential audit adjustments to you on a regular basis so 
you will have adequate time to research and respond. Additionally, we have a disaster 
recovery plan that includes daily data back-ups and offsite file storage, so in the case of an 
emergency, your records would be safe.  



 

2 
 

Panther Trace II Community Development District 
November 15, 2018 

 
• Responsiveness 

We pride ourselves on our high level of responsiveness. We answer emails and telephone 
calls within 24 hours, and usually right away. We are always accessible to clients during 
business hours, and make every effort to answer any questions as they arise. Additionally, 
we don’t just complete your audit and disappear. We understand the “big picture” and think 
beyond the traditional auditor’s perspective. We remain in touch for the entire year, 
suggesting ways you can improve your District’s performance, procedures and controls. 
We will update, advise and educate you on new or revised reporting requirements so you 
are sure to always remain compliant.  
 

• Reputation 
Our reputation in our field is impeccable. We have never been involved in any litigation, 
proceeding or received any disciplinary action. Additionally, we have never been 
charged with, or convicted of, a public entity crime of any sort. We have the 
professional staff available to perform the engagement and resources required to complete 
the work. We are financially stable and have never been involved in any bankruptcy 
proceedings. 
 

• Standards 
Grau & Associates is a professional association / licensed certified public accounting firm 
serving clients through the state of Florida. We are a member of the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (FICPA). Additionally, individuals are members of both the (GFOA) and 
(FGFOA). Grau is also a member of the Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC). Our 
audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules 
of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, and any other applicable federal, state and 
local regulations. We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
 This proposal is a firm and irrevocable offer for 90 days. We certify this proposal is made without 

previous understanding, agreement or connection either with any previous firms or corporations 
offering a proposal for the same items. We also certify our proposal is in all respects fair, without 
outside control, collusion, fraud, or otherwise illegal action, and was prepared in good faith. Only 
the person(s), company or parties interested in the project as principals are named in the proposal. 
Grau has no existing or potential conflicts, and anticipates no conflicts during the engagement. Our 
Federal I.D. number is 20-2067322. 

 
 We would be happy to answer any questions or provide additional information as needed. Please 

do not hesitate to call or email either of our Partners, Antonio J. Grau, CPA (tgrau@graucpa.com) 
or Racquel McIntosh, CPA (rmcintosh@graucpa.com) at 561.994.9299. We thank you for 
considering our firm’s qualifications and experience, and look forward to serving you. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
Grau & Associates 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Antonio J. Grau  

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com
mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

3 
 

 

 

 

Firm Qualifications & 
Experience 

 
 



 

4 
 

Grau & Associates is a medium-sized accounting firm providing comprehensive financial and compliance 
auditing, attestation and accounting, and other management consulting services and we are properly 
registered and licensed by the State of Florida. The Partners, Consultant and Managers of Grau are members 
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Florida Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  
 
Grau & Associates is a properly registered/licensed State of Florida professional corporation and all assigned 
supervisory professional staff are properly registered/licensed to practice in the State of Florida.  

 
Grau’s Focus and Experience 
 

• We are dedicated to serving Special Districts. 
• We currently audit over 300 Special Districts. 
• Last year, Grau performed in excess of 19,000 hours of services for our Public Sector Clients under 

Governmental Auditing Standards. 
• Grau currently only provides audit and attestation services principally for governmental and non-

profit entities under government auditing standards. The firm and staff are 100% dedicated to the audit 
practice.  

 
During Grau’s history we have consistently focused on providing service to the public sector. By focusing our 
resources on this industry, we provide the highest level of services to our Public Sector Clients. 

 
Grau & Associates has a total of 17 employees, 15 professional staff, including 2 Partners and 13 
professionals who specialize in providing auditing, accounting, consulting, and monitoring services to the 
Public Sector and 2 administrative professionals. The number of professional staff by employee classification 
is as follows: 
 

*ALL FULL TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
Compliance with Government Education Requirements 
 
In order to maintain our high level of technical competence, we provide continuing professional education 
programs for all partners and professional staff members, which exceed national and state standards.  All of 
the audit professionals of Grau & Associates exceed the education requirements as set forth in 
Government Auditing Standards, published by the Comptroller General of the United States, and our 
continuing professional education programs ensure that all audit professionals meet the requirements to 
participate in audits of government agencies. 
 

Team Member Total Professional Staff Total CPAs Total Government  
Audit Staff 

Partners * 2 2 2 

Managers * 3 3 3 

Advisory Consultant 1 1 1 

Supervisor / Seniors * 4 2 4 

Staff Accountants * 5 1 5 

                      Total 15 9 15 



 

5 
 

Professional Staff Training 
 
Partners - All of our Partners are CPA’s and have diversified public accounting experience.  They are 
responsible for overall engagement performance, policy, direction and quality control and have far exceeded 
minimum CPE requirements. 
 
Managers - All of our Audit Managers are CPA’s who have demonstrated the ability to plan audit 
engagements, supervise personnel and maintain frequent contact with clients.  They continually upgrade their 
skills through the firm’s continuing education programs and courses sponsored by the AICPA, FICPA and 
GFOA. They have far exceeded minimum CPE Requirements. 
 
Seniors - All of our Seniors have a minimum of 3 years of diversified public accounting experience. They 
perform audits, evaluate staff, review findings and prepare audit reports.  They possess the potential for 
upward mobility and have far exceeded minimum CPE requirements. 

 
Memberships 
 
All of the firm’s CPA’s are properly licensed as CPA’s and members in good standing of both the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  In addition, 
certain firm professionals are members or have been members of the following professional groups: 
 

• FICPA Committee on State and Local Government 
• Florida Government Finance Officers Association (FGOA) 
• Special Review Committee of the Government Finance Officers Association 
• Florida Institute of CPA Non-Profit Conference Committee 
• Florida Association of Special Districts (FASD) 
• FGFOA Annual Conference Program Committee  
• FASD Finance Committee 
• FICPA Young CPAs Committee 
• FICPA Accounting Careers Committee 

 
In addition, we have an ongoing recruitment program that seeks only those accountants with a proven record 
of academic success. When we recruit at the senior and manager level, we select CPA’s with proven 
governmental accounting and auditing experience.  
 
Quality Control and Confidentiality 
 
Grau participates in an external quality review program requiring an on-site independent examination of our 
auditing practice. Grau has consistently received an unqualified opinion on the quality of our audit practice. 
During our firm’s last external quality control review, six audits were reviewed, including five government 
audits. A copy of the report on the firm’s most recent quality review can be found on the following page.  

 
In addition to scheduled Peer Reviews, our firm continually monitors performance to ensure the highest quality 
of services. Under the supervision of the Audit Partner, an Audit Manager is responsible for monitoring quality 
control of all appropriate engagements. 

 
Results of State and Federal Reviews 
 
All state and federal reviews of the firm’s reports and working papers have been accepted without change or 
revision to issued reports. 
 
  



 

6 
 

 
  



 

7 
 

Partial List of Clients 
 

The following is a partial list of clients served and related experience: 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Aberdeen Community Development District      9/30 

Allen Plantation Community Development District      9/30 

Amelia Concourse Community Development District     9/30 

Amelia National Community Development District     9/30 

Amelia Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Anthem Park Community Development District     9/30 

Antigua at St. Augustine Community District     9/30 

Aqua One Community Development District     9/30 

Arbor Green Community Development District     9/30 

Arbor Green Community Development District     9/30 

Arlington Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Armstrong Community Development District     9/30 

Artisan Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Asturia Community Development District     9/30 

Ave Maria Stewardship Community Development District     9/30 

Aventura Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Bahia Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Ballantrae Community Development District     9/30 

Ballantrae Hillsborough Community Development District     9/30 

Bartram Park Community Development District     9/30 

Bartram Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Bay Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bay Laurel Community Development District    9/30 

Bay Tree Community Development District     9/30 

Bayside Improvement Development District     9/30 

Baywinds Community Development District     9/30 

Beach Community Development District     9/30 

Beacon Tradeport Community Development District      9/30 

Beeline Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Verda East Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Verda Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Bella Vida Community Development District     9/30 

Bellagio Community Development District     9/30 

Belmont Community Development District     9/30 

Belmont Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Bexley Community Development District     9/30 

Blackburn Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bluewaters Community Development District     9/30 



 

8 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Bobcat Trail Community Developement District     9/30 

Boggy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bonita Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Bonita Village Community Development District     9/30 

Bonnett Creek Resort Community Development District     9/30 

Bonterra Community Development District     9/30 

Brandy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Bridgewater Community Development District     9/30 

Bridgewater of Wesley Chapel Community Development District     9/30 

Briger Community Development District     9/30 

Brighton Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Brooks of Bonita Springs I Community Development District     9/30 

Brooks of Bonita Springs II Community Development District     9/30 

Bull Frog Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Candler Hills East Community Development District     9/30 

Capital Region Community Development District     9/30 

Captain's Key Dependent District     9/30 

Caribe Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Carlton Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Cascades at Groveland Community Development District     9/30 

Catalina at Winkler Preserve Community Development District     9/30 

CBL/BM Port Orange West Community Development District     9/30 

Cedar Pointe Community Development District     9/30 

Celebration Point Community Development District     9/30 

Central Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens at Tamiami Community Development District     9/30 

Century Gardens Village Community Development District     9/30 

Century Parc Community Development District     9/30 

CFM (Coolidge Fort Myers) Community Development District     9/30 

Chapel Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Champions Gate Community Development District     9/30 

Champion’s Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Channing Park Community Development District     9/30 

City Center Community Development District     9/30 

City Place Community Development District     9/30 

Clearwater Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Coastal Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Cocot Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Coconut Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Concorde Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Concorde Station Community Development District     9/30 



 

9 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Connerton West Community Development District     9/30 

Copper Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Copper Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Copperstone Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Keys Homes Community Development District     9/30 

Coral Town Park Community Development District     9/30 

Cordoba Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Corkscrew Farms Community Development District     9/30 

Coronado Community Development District     9/30 

Cory Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Country Club of Mount Dora Community Development District     9/30 

Country Greens Community Development District     9/30 

Country Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Covington Park Community Development District     9/30 

Creekside Community Development District     9/30 

Crestview II Community Development District     9/30 

Crestview West Community Development District     9/30 

Cross Country Home Services Community Development District     9/30 

Cross Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Cutler Cay Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Grove Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Cypress Shadows Community Development District     9/30 

Deer Island Community Development District     9/30 

Deer Run Community Development District     9/30 

K-Bar Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Double Branch Community Development District     9/30 

Dove Pond Community Development District     9/30 

Downtown Doral Community Development District    9/30 

Dunes Community Development District    9/30 

Dupree Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Eagle Point Community Development District     9/30 

East Bonita Bridge Road Community Development District     9/30 

East Park Community Development District     9/30 

Easton Park Community Development District     9/30 

Enclave at Black Point Marina Community Development District     9/30 

Encore Community Development District     9/30 

Enterprise Community Development District    9/30 

Epperson Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Estancia at Wiregrass Community Development District     9/30 



 

10 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Estates at Cherry Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Estuary Community Development District     9/30 

Falcon Trace Community Development District     9/30 

Fallschase Community Development District     9/30 

Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk I Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk II Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk III Community Development District     9/30 

Fishhawk IV Community Development District     9/30 

Fleming Island Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Florida Green Finance Authority     9/30 

Founder’s Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Fountainbleau Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Forest Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Gardens at Millenia Community Development District     9/30 

K-Bar Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Gramercy Farms Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Bay at Doral Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Hampton Community Development District     9/30 

Grand Haven Community Development District     9/30 

Greater Lakes/Sawgrass Community Development District     9/30 

Green Corridor PACE District     9/30 

Greyhawk Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Groves Community Development District     9/30 

Habitat Community Development District     9/30 

Hacienda Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Hamal Community Development District     9/30 

Hammocks Community Development District     9/30 

Harbor Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Harbour Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Harbourage at Braden River Community Development District     9/30 

Harmony Community Development District     9/30 

Harrison Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Hawk's Point Community Development District     9/30 

Hemmingway Point Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Greens Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbor Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbor at Braden River Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbour Market Place Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Harbour South Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Isles at Viera Community Development District     9/30 



 

11 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Heritage Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Oak Park Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Park Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Heritage Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Heron Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Hickory Hammock Community Development District     9/30 

High Ridge/Quantum Community Development District     9/30 

Highlands Community Development District     9/30 

Hollywood Beach Community Development District     9/30 

Homestead 50 Community Development District     9/30 

Hypoluxo-Haverhill Community Development District     9/30 

Independence Park Community Development District     9/30 

Indigo Community Development District     9/30 

Indigo East Community Development District      9/30 

Interlaken Community Development District      9/30 

Islands at Doral III Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral (NE) Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral (SW) Community Development District     9/30 

Islands at Doral Townhomes Community Development District     9/30 

Isles of Bartram Park Community Development District     9/30 

Journey's End Community Development District     9/30 

Jurlington Creek Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

K-Bar Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Kendall Breeze Community Development District     9/30 

Kendall Breeze West Community Development District     9/30 

Key Marco Community Development District     9/30 

Keys Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Keys Cove II Community Development District     9/30 

La Collina Community Development District     9/30 

Laguna Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Laguna Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Ashton Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Ashton II Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Francis Community Development District     9/30 

Lake Padgett Estates Independent District     9/30 

Lake Powell Residential Golf Community Development District     9/30 

Lakes by the Bay South Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeshore Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeside Community Development District     9/30 

Lakeside Landings Community Development District     9/30 



 

12 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Lakeside Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 1 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 2 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 3 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 4 Community Development District      9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 5 Community Development District     9/30 

Lakewood Ranch 6 Community Development District     9/30 

Legacy Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Legends Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Lexington Community Development District     9/30 

Live Oak Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Live Oak No. 1 Community Development District     9/30 

Long Lake Ranch Community Development District     9/30 

Longleaf Community Development District     9/30 

Lucaya Community Development District     9/30 

Madeira Community Development District     9/30 

Magnolia Park Community Development District     9/30 

Magnolia West Community Development District     9/30 

Main Street Community Development District     9/30 

Mainstreet Community Development District     9/30 

Majorca Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Maple Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Marsh Harbour Community Development District     9/30 

Marshall Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Mayfair Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Pines Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Point I Community Development District     9/30 

Meadow Point III Community Development District      9/30 

Meadow Point IV Community Development District      9/30 

Meadow Woods Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterra North Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterra South Community Development District     9/30 

Mediterranea Community Development District     9/30 

Middle Village Community Development District     9/30 

Mira Lago West Community Development District     9/30 

Mirada Community Development District     9/30 

Miromar Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Montecito Community Development District     9/30 

Monterey/Congress Community Development District     9/30 

Myakka Community Development District     9/30 

Moody River Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Myakka Ranch Community Development District     9/30 



 

13 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Myrtle Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Naples Heritage Community Development District     9/30 

Narcoossee Community Development District     9/30 

Newport Tampa Bay Community Development District    9/30 

North Dade Community Development District     9/30 

Northern Riverwalk Community Development District     9/30 

Northwood Community Development District     9/30 

Oak Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Oakridge Community Development District     9/30 

Oaks at Shady Creek, The Community Development District     9/30 

Oakstead Community Development District     9/30 

Old Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Orchid Grove Community Development District     9/30 

Osprey Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

OTC Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Beach Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Coast Park Community Development District     9/30 

Palm Glades Community Development District     9/30 

Palma Sola Trace Community Development District     9/30 

Palms of Terra Ceia Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Pan American West Community Development District     9/30 

Panther Trace I Community Development District     9/30 

Panther Trace II Community Development District      9/30 

Panther Trails Community Development District     9/30 

Parker Road Community Development District     9/30 

Parklands Lee Community Development District     9/30 

Parklands West Community Development District     9/30 

Parkway Center Community Development District     9/30 

Paseo Community Development District     9/30 

PBR Community Development District     9/30 

Pebblewalk Village Community Development District     9/30 

Pelican Marsh Community Development District     9/30 

Pembroke Harbor Community Development District     9/30 

Pentathlon Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Air Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Island Community Development District     9/30 

Pine Island South Community Development District     9/30 

Piney-Z Community Development District     9/30 

Pioneer Community Development District     9/30 

Poinciana Community Development District     9/30 

Poinciana West Community Development District     9/30 



 

14 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Portico Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Cove Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Landings Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Shores Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Vineyards Community Development District     9/30 

Portofino Vista Community Development District     9/30 

Preserve at Wilderness Lake Community Development District     9/30 

Principal One Community Development District     9/30 

Quantum Community Development District     9/30 

Quantum Park Overlay Community Development District     9/30 

Quarry Community Development District     9/30 

Randal Park Community Development District     9/30 

Remington Community Development District     9/30 

Renaissance Community Development District     9/30 

Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Reserve 2 Community Development District     9/30 

Reunion East Community Development District     9/30 

Reunion West Community Development District     9/30 

River Bend Community Development District     9/30 

River Glen Community Development District     9/30 

River Hall Community Development District     9/30 

River Place on the St. Lucie Community Development District     9/30 

River Ridge Community Development District     9/30 

Rivercrest Community Development District     9/30 

Rivers Edge Community Development District     9/30 

Sable Palm Community Development District     9/30 

Sail Harbour Community Development District     9/30 

Sampson Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Sandy Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Sausalito Bay Community Development District     9/30 

Seven Oaks I Community Development District     9/30 

Seven Oaks II Community Development District     9/30 

Silver Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Silverado Community Development District     9/30 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Somerset Community Development District     9/30 

Sonoma Bay Community Development District     9/30 

South Bay Community Development District     9/30 

South Fork Community Development District     9/30 

South Fork East Community Development District     9/30 



 

15 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

South Fork III Community Development District     9/30 

South Kendall Community Development District     9/30 

South Shore Corporate Park Industrial Community Development District     9/30 

South-Dade Venture Development District     9/30 

South Village Community Development District     9/30 

Southaven Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation I Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation II Community Development District     9/30 

Southern Hills Plantation III Community Development District     9/30 

Spicewood Community Development District     9/30 

Split Pine Community Development District     9/30 

Springridge Community Development District (formerly Killarney)     9/30 

St. John's Forest Community Development District     9/30 

Sterling Hill Community Development District     9/30 

Stevens Plantation Community Development District     9/30 

Stonebrier Community Development District     9/30 

Stonegate Community Development District     9/30 

Stoneybrook at Venice Community Development District    9/30 

Stoneybrook Community Development District    9/30 

Stoneybrook Oaks Community Development District    9/30 

Storey Park Community Development District    9/30 

Summerville Community Development District    9/30 

Summit at Fern Hill Community Development District    9/30 

Sunny Hills Units 12-15 Dependent District     9/30 

SWI Community Development District     9/30 

Talavera Community Development District     9/30 

Talis Park Community Development District     9/30 

Tampa Palms Community Development District     9/30 

Tampa Palms Open Space and Transport Community Development District     9/30 

Tapestry Community Development District     9/30 

Tara Community Development District     9/30 

Terra Bella Community Development District     9/30 

Tesoro Community Development District     9/30 

Thousand Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Tison's Landing Community Development District     9/30 

Tolomato Community Development District     9/30 

Tomoka Community Development District     9/30 

Toscana Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Town Center at Palm Coast Community Development District     9/30 

Tradition Community Development District     9/30 

Trails Community Development District     9/30 

Trails at Monterey Community Development District     9/30 



 

16 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Treaty Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Tree Island Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Treeline Preserve Community Development District     9/30 

Trevesta Community Development District     9/30 

Triple Creek Community Development District     9/30 

TSR Community Development District     9/30 

Turnbull Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Turtle Run Community Development District     9/30 

Tuscany Reserve Community Development District     9/30 

Twelve Oaks Community Development District     9/30 

Two Creeks Community Development District     9/30 

University Place Community Development District     9/30 

University Square Community Development District     9/30 

Urban Orlando Community Development District     9/30 

Valencia Acres Community Development District     9/30 

Vasari Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Isles Community Development District     9/30 

Venetian Parc Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah East Community Development District     9/30 

Verandah West Community Development District     9/30 

Verandahs Community Development District     9/30 

Verano #1 Community Development District     9/30 

Verano Center Community Development District     9/30 

Verona Walk Community Development District     9/30 

Viera East Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Portofino East Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Portofino West Community Development District     9/30 

Villa Vizcaya Community Development District     9/30 

Village Walk of Bonita Springs Community Development District     9/30 

Villages at Bloomingdale Community Development District     9/30 

Village at Gulfstream Park Community Development District     9/30 

Villages of Glen Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Villages of Westport Community Development District     9/30 

Vista Community Development District     9/30 

Vista Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Vizcaya in Kendall Community Development District     9/30 

Walnut Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Waterchase Community Development District     9/30 

Waterford Estates Community Development District     9/30 

Waterford Landing Community Development District     9/30 



 

17 
 

 
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

ta
l 

A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Watergrass Community Development District     9/30 

Waterlefe Community Development District     9/30 

Water's Edge Community Development District     9/30 

Waterset North Community Development District     9/30 

Waterstone Community Development District     9/30 

Wentworth Estates Community Development District     9/30 

West Lake Community Development District     9/30 

West Villages Independent District     9/30 

Westchase Community Development District     9/30 

Westchester Community Development District     9/30 

Westridge Community Development District     9/30 

Willow Creek Community Development District     9/30 

Winding Cypress Community Development District     9/30 

Windsor at Westside Community Development District     9/30 

Winston Trails East Community Development District     9/30 

Winter Garden Village at Fowler Groves Community Development District     9/30 

Woodlands Community Development District     9/30 

World Commerce Community Development District     9/30 

Wyndam Park Community Development District     9/30 

Wynnfield Lakes Community Development District     9/30 

Wynnmere West Community Development District     9/30 

TOTAL 437 3 255   

 
 
 
 

 
  

 

A
tt

e
st

a
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

C
A

FR
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Broward County School District (Joint Venture) 
    (Assessment of Maintenance Operations)       N/A 

Broward County School District (Joint Venture, 20%)       6/30 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville (Internal Audit)       6/30 
Florida Transit Association Finance Corporation       6/30 
Highland County School District (Internal Funds Audit)       6/30 
Palm Beach County School District (Assessment of maintenance for Facility 
    and Property Management) (Internal Funds Audit)       6/30 

Palm Beach County School District (Joint Venture, 20%)       6/30 
Migrant Health Services of Palm Beach County       N/A 
South Florida Water Management District       9/30 
South Florida Water Management District CERP Program 
    Management Services (Joint Venture)       N/A 

State of Florida Department of Management Services (Construction)       N/A 
State of Florida Department of Transportation (Overhead Audits - Various)       N/A 

TOTAL 2 3 8 4 2 2  



 

18 
 

 
 A

tt
e

st
a

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

T
ax

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Aid to Victims of Domestic Abuse, Inc.        6/30 
Alliance for Human Services, Inc.        6/30 
Brevard Workforce Development Board, Inc.        6/30 
Broward County Human Rights Board/Division (Joint Venture, 30%)        N/A 
Broward Education Foundation        6/30 
CareerSource Broward        9/30 
CareerSource Central Florida        9/30 
CareerSource Polk        9/30 
Christian Manor        12/31 
Delray Beach Community Land Trust        9/30 
Family Promise        12/31 
Florida Public Transportation Association, Inc.        9/30 
Florida Transit Association Finance Corporation        9/30 
Hispanic Human Resources Council        9/30 
Mae Volen Senior Center        6/30 
National Board for Registration of Registrars        3/31 
National Cancer Registration Board        6/30 
North Lauderdale Academy High School        6/30 
Northwood Development Corporation        9/30 
Palm Beach Community College Foundation        6/30 
Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board (Joint Venture, 
25%)        6/30 

Pasco-Hernando Workforce Board        6/30 
Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board        6/30 
Urban League of Palm Beach County        6/30 

TOTAL 9 15 5 15 11 15 8  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Fi
n

an
ci

al
 A

u
d

it
 

E
R

IS
A

/
D

O
L 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Campbell Property Management 401(k)    12/31 

City of Cooper City General Employee Retirement Plan    9/30 
City of Lauderhill General Employee Retirement Plan    9/30 
City of Parkland Police Pension Fund    9/30 
City of Sunrise General Employees' Retirement System    9/30 
Cross County Home Services and Affiliates 401(k) Plan    9/30 
Danmar Corporation 401(k) Plan    12/31 
Florida Public Utilities 401(k) and Pension Plans    12/31 
Jacksonville Police and Fire Pension Fund    9/30 
Pinetree Water Control District Defined Contribution Retirement Plan    9/30 
San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District    9/30 
Town of Davie General Employees Retirement Plan    9/30 
Town of Hypoluxo Defined Contribution Retirement Plan    9/30 
Town of Lauderdale By The Sea Volunteer Firefighters Pension Plan    9/30 

TOTAL 14 4 9  



 

19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
ta

l 
A

u
d

it
 

S
in

g
le

 A
u

d
it

 

U
ti

li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 

C
u

rr
en

t 
C

li
en

t 

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

 

Belle Fontaine Improvement District       9/30 
 

Boca Raton Airport Authority       9/30 

Central Broward Water Control District       9/30 

Central County Water Control District       9/30 

Citrus County Mosquito Control District       9/30 

Coquina Water Control District       9/30 

East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facility      9/30 

East Naples Fire Control and Rescue District       9/30 

Greater Boca Raton Beach and Park District       9/30 

Greeneway Improvement District       9/30 

Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District         9/30 

Homestead Educational Facilities Benefits District       9/30 

Horizons Improvement District       9/30 

Indian Trail Improvement District       9/30 

Key Largo Waste Water Treatment District     9/30 

Lake Padgett Estates Independent Special District       9/30 

Lakewood Ranch Inter-District Authority        9/30 

Lost Rabbit Public Improvement District       9/30 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District       9/30 

Myakka City Fire Control District       9/30 

Old Plantation Control District       9/30 

Pal Mar Water Control District       9/30 

Palm Beach Soil and Water Conservation District       9/30 

Pinellas Park Water Management District       9/30 

Pine Tree Water Control District (Broward)       9/30 

Pinetree Water Control District (Wellington)       9/30 

Ranger Drainage District       9/30 

Renaissance Improvement District       9/30 

San Carlos Park Fire Protection and Rescue Service District       9/30 

South Central Regional Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Board      9/30 

South Indian River Water Control District      9/30 

South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue District       9/30 

St. Lucie West Services District       9/30 

Sun 'N Lake of Sebring Improvement District      9/30 

Sunshine Water Control District       9/30 

Twelve Oaks Improvement District       9/30 

West Lakeland Water Control District       9/30 

West Villages Independent District       9/30 

TOTAL 38 3 3 24   



 

20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  



 

21 
 

 

 

 

Staff Qualifications,  
Experience & Resumes 



 

22 
 

QUALITY AND EXPERIENCE OF FIRM’S ASSIGNED AUDITING PERSONNEL  
 
You will have two partners available and our consultant for any technical assistance. In addition, an audit 
manager will be available for the engagement and a senior will be assigned to the engagement that will 
perform the majority of fieldwork. Additional staff are available to assist with the engagement should the need 
arise.   

 

Name Years 
performing 
government 

audits 

CPE within last 2 
years 

Professional 
Memberships 

ANTONIO J. GRAU, CPA 
(Partner) 

 

Over 30 Government Accounting, 
Auditing: 57 hours 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 23 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
FGFOA 
GFOA 

ANTONIO S. GRAU, CPA 
(Concurring Review Consultant) 

 

Over 40 Government Accounting and 
Auditing: 32 hours 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 62 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
ICPA 

 

RACQUEL MCINTOSH, CPA 
(Partner) 

 

Over 13 Government Accounting and 
Auditing hours: 62 
 
Accounting, Auditing and 
Other: 20 hours 

AICPA 
FICPA 
FGFOA 
FASD 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

23 
 

POSITION DESCRIPTIONS 
 
Engagement Partner 
The engagement will be performed under the direct supervision of an Engagement Partner.  The 
Engagement Partner will participate extensively during the various stages of the engagement and has direct 
responsibility for engagement policy, direction, supervision, quality control, security, confidentiality of 
information of the engagement and communication with client personnel.  
 
The Engagement Partner will also be involved in: 
 coordinating all services; 
 directing the development of the overall audit 

approach and plan; 
 performing an overriding review of work papers; 
 resolving technical accounting and reporting issues; 
 reviewing, approving and signing reports, 

management letters, and other audit engagement 
products; and, 

 ascertaining client satisfaction with all aspects of our 
engagement, such as services and the personnel 
assigned. 

 
Concurring Review and Advisory Consultant  
A Concurring Review Consultant will be available as a sounding board to advise in those areas where 
problems are encountered. He will also perform a second review of all reports to be issued by Grau & 
Associates. 
 
Audit Manager and Senior  
The assigned personnel will work closely with the partner and the District to ensure that the financial 
statements and all other reports are prepared in accordance with professional standards and firm policy. 
Responsibilities will include: 
 
 planning the audit; 
 preparing or modifying audit programs, as needed; 
 evaluating internal control and assessing risk; 
 communicating with the client and the partners the progress of the audit; and 
 determining that financial statements and all reports issued by the firm for accuracy, completeness and 

that they are prepared in accordance with professional standards and firm policy. 
 
Information Technology Consultants and Personnel 
 
In addition to the assigned personnel above, Grau and Associates has staff with significant IT auditing 
experience that will assist in the evaluation and testing of internal controls. Because our staff has both a 
financial audit and IT background, they are able to communicate effectively all IT related concerns to 
management. In addition, Grau contracts with an outside group of IT management consultants to assist with 
matters including, but not limited to; network and database security, internet security and vulnerability testing.  

 
Grau’s engagement team’s workload is organized in such a way that additional activities 
brought about by this engagement will not impact our current commitments to our 
clients. We have sufficient staff capacity to integrate these professional services into 
our present operations, while continuing to maintain the highest standards of quality 
and time lines for our clients.   
 

  

 
 



 

24 
 

15%

20%

20%

45%

PARTNERS
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

10%

15%

20%

55%

PARTNERS
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

20%

30%

30%

20%

PARTNER/CONSULTANT
MANAGERS
SENIOR
STAFF

COMPOSITION OF ENGAGEMENT TEAM 
 

In contrast to the majority of both national and local firms, Grau’s proposed engagement team is 
comprised of an exceptionally large percentage of high-level audit professionals.  This gives us the 
ability to quickly recognize problems and be more efficient as a result of our Team’s DECADES of 
governmental auditing experience. 

 
 

Grau & Associates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

80 percent of engagement will be performed by 
Partners, Management and Senior Staff 

 
VS. 

 
Typical Local CPA Firm: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fifty-five percent of engagement is 
performed by “Management” 

 
Typical National CPA Firm                                                   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Forty-five percent of engagement is 
performed by “Management” 

 
 



 

25 
 

Antonio J. Grau, CPA, Partner  
e-mail: tgrau@graucpa.com 
 
Education 

Bachelor of Arts, Business Administration, 1983 University of South Florida; Certificate of Educational 
Achievement from the AICPA in Governmental Single Audits, 2016 

 
Professional History  
 CPA, in Florida since February 28, 1985, Certificate No. 15330 
 Grau & Associates  Partner   2005-Present 
 Grau & Company  Partner   1995-2005 
 Grau & Company  Audit Manager  1987-1995 
 International Firm  Auditor   1985-1986 
 Grau & Company  Staff Accountant 1983-1984 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing     57 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other      23  
 Total Hours                                80 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 
 
Other Qualifications 

As a member of the Government Finance Officers Association Special Review Committee, Mr. Grau 
participated in the review process for awarding the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting. 
Mr. Grau was the review team leader for the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of School 
Board of Miami-Dade County. 
 

Professional Associations/Memberships 
 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants        Florida Government Finance Officers Association 
 Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants            Government Finance Officers Association Member 
 City of Boca Raton Financial Advisory Board Member 

(>300) Various Special Districts Key Largo Water Treatment District 
Brevard Workforce Board Mae Volen Senior Center, Inc. 
Broward Education Foundation North Lauderdale Academy High School 
City of Cooper City   Orlando Housing Authority 
City of Lauderdale Lakes Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board 
City of Lauderhill  Peninsula Housing Programs 
City of Lauderhill General Pension School Board of Broward County 
City of North Lauderdale  School Board of Miami-Dade County 
City of Oakland Park School Board of Palm Beach County 
City of Weston  South Florida Water Management District 
Delray Beach Housing Authority  Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board 
East Central Regional Wastewater Treatment Facl. Town of Davie 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville Town of Highland Beach 
Florida Department of Management Services Town of Hypoluxo 
Greater Boca Raton Park & Beach District Village of Golf 
Highland County School District Village of Wellington 
Hispanic Human Resource Council West Palm Beach Housing Authority 

mailto:tgrau@graucpa.com


 

26 
 

Antonio S. Grau, CPA, Concurring Review Consultant 
e-mail: asgrau@graucpa.com 
 
Education 

Bachelor Degree, Business Administration, 1966, University of Miami, Certificate of Educational 
Achievement from the AICPA in Governmental and Not-For-Profit Accounting and Auditing, 1994/1995 

 
Professional History  
 CPA in Florida since April 29, 1970, Certificate No. 2623    
 Grau & Company  Partner   1977-2004 
 Public Company  Financial Officer  1972-1976 
 International Firm  Auditor   1966-1972 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

Mr. Grau was the head of the governmental audit department of Grau & Company, and performs the 
concurring review and advises on all the governmental audits of the firm. 

Atlanta Housing Authority Hispanic Human Resource Council 
Broward County Housing Authority Mae Volen Senior Center, Inc. 
City of Dania Beach Miami Beach Housing Authority 
City of Lauderdale Lakes North Lauderdale Academy High School 
City of Lauderhill Palm Beach County Workforce Development Board 
City of Lauderhill General Pension School Board of Miami-Dade County 
City of Miami Springs South Florida Water Management District 
City of Oakland Park Town of Hypoluxo 
City of Sweetwater Pension Town of Lauderdale-By-The-Sea 
Florida Community College at Jacksonville Town of Miami Lakes  
Highland County School District Town of Southwest Ranches  
Downtown Development Authority of the City of Miami / 
Community Development Block Grants 

Village of Biscayne Park                                                     
West Palm Beach Housing Authority  

 
Professional Education (over the last two years) 
 Course     Hours 
 Government Accounting and Auditing    32 
 Accounting, Auditing and Other     62 
 Total Hours                               94 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 
 
Other Qualifications 

Mr. Grau was the review team leader for the Quality Review of the Office of Management Audits of School 
Board of Miami-Dade County. 

 
Professional Associations/Memberships 
Member, American Institute of Certified Public Accountants  
Member, Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants  
Past member, State and Local Government Committee, Florida 
Past member, Quality Review Acceptance Committee, Florida 
Past member of BKR International Committee on Government and Non-Profit Accounting and Auditing 
 
  

mailto:asgrau@graucpa.com


 

27 
 

Racquel C. McIntosh, CPA, Partner  
e-mail: rmcintosh@graucpa.com / 561-939-6669 
 
Education 

Master of Accounting, MACC; Florida Atlantic University, December 2004;  
Bachelor of Arts – Majors: Accounting and Finance; Florida Atlantic University, May 2003 

 
Professional History  
 Grau & Associates  Partner    2014-Present 
 Grau & Associates  Manager   2009-2014 
 Grau & Associates  Senior Auditor   2007-2009 
 Grau & Associates  Staff Auditor   2006-2007 
 Grau & Company  Staff Auditor   2005-2006 
 
Clients Served (partial list) 

 
 Professional Education (over the last two years) 

 
 
 
 
 

Professional Associations/ Memberships 
 
 
  

(>300) Various Special Districts Pinetree Water Control District (Broward/Palm Beach) 
Boca Raton Airport Authority Ranger Drainage District 
Brevard Workforce Development Board San Carlos Park Fire Protection & Rescue District 
Broward Education Foundation South Central Reg. Wastewater Treatment & Disposal Bd.  
Central Broward Water Control District South Trail Fire Protection & Rescue 
City of Cooper City Southwest Florida Workforce Development Board 
City of Pompano Beach (Joint Venture) Sun N Lake of Sebring Improvement District 
City of West Park Town of Highland Beach 
City of Weston Town of Hypoluxo 
East Central Reg. Wastewater Treatment Fac. Town of Lantana 
East Naples  Fire Control & Rescue District Town of Hillsboro Beach 
Greater Boca Raton Beach & Park District Village of Golf 
Key Largo Wastewater Treatment District Village of Wellington 

Course Hours 
Government Accounting and Auditing  62 
Accounting, Auditing and Other   20 
Total Hours   82 (includes of 4 hours of Ethics CPE) 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA State & Local Government Committee 
Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants FICPA Atlantic Chapter Board Member 
FICPA Young CPAs Committee FGFOA Palm Beach Chapter 

mailto:rmcintosh@graucpa.com


 

28 
 

 

References 



 

29 
 

We have included three references of government engagements that require compliance with 
laws and regulations, follow fund accounting, and have financing requirements, which we believe 
are similar to the District. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Two Creeks Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Racquel McIntosh 
Dates Annually since 2007 
Client Contact William Rizzetta, President 

12750 Citrus Park Lane, Suite 115 
Tampa, Florida 33625 
813-933-5571 

Dunes Community Development District  
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 1998 
Client Contact Darrin Mossing, Finance Director 

475 W. Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
904-940-5850 

Journey’s End Community Development District 
Scope of Work Financial audit 
Engagement Partner Antonio J. Grau 
Dates Annually since 2004 
Client Contact Todd Wodraska, Vice President 

2501 A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
561-630-4922 



 

30 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Cost of Services 



 

31 
 

Our proposed all-inclusive fees for the financial audit for the fiscal years ended September 30, 
2018-2020 are as follows: 
 

Year Ended September 30,  Fee 

2018  $3,600 

2019  $3,700 

2020  $3,800 

TOTAL  $11,100 
 
The above fees are based on the assumption that the District maintains its current level of 
operations. Should conditions change or Bonds are issued the fees would be adjusted accordingly 
upon approval from all parties concerned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

32 
 

 

 

 
 

Supplemental Information  
 



 

33 
 

Specific Audit Approach 
 
 
SCOPE / WORK PRODUCTS / RESULTS 
 
Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services: 
 
We recognize the District is an important entity and we are confident our firm is eminently qualified to 
meet the challenges of this engagement and deliver quality audit services. You would be a valued client 
of our firm and we pledge to commit  all  firm resources to provide the level and quality of services 
(as described below) which not only meet the requirements set forth in the RFP but will exceed 
those expectations. Grau & Associates fully understands the scope of professional services and work 
products requested. Our audit will follow the Auditing Standards of the AICPA, Generally Accepted 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Rules 
of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and any other applicable Federal, State of Local regulations. 
We will deliver our reports in accordance with your requirements.  

 
Proposed segmentation of the engagement 

 
Our approach to the audit engagement is a risk-based approach which integrates the best of traditional 
auditing techniques and a total systems concept to enable the team to conduct a more efficient and 
effective audit. The audit will be conducted in three phases, which are as follows: 

 
Phase I - Preliminary Planning 
 
A thorough understanding of your organization, service objectives and operating environment is essential 
for the development of an audit plan and for an efficient, cost-effective audit.  During this phase, we will 
meet with appropriate personnel to obtain and document our understanding of your operations and 
service objectives and, at the same time, give you the opportunity to express your expectations with 
respect to the services that we will provide.  Our work effort will be coordinated so that there will be 
minimal disruption to your staff.  

 
During this phase we will perform the following activities:  

 
• Review the regulatory, statutory and compliance requirements. This will include a review of 

applicable federal and state statutes, resolutions, bond documents, contracts, and other 
agreements. 

• Read minutes of meetings. 
• Review major sources of information such as budgets, organization charts, procedures, manuals, 

financial systems, and management information systems. 
• Obtain an understanding of fraud detection and prevention systems. 
• Obtain and document an understanding of internal control.  Consider the methods that are used 

to process accounting information which influence the design of the internal control.  This 
understanding includes knowledge about the design of relevant policies, procedures, and records, 
and whether they have been placed in operation.   

• Assess risk and determine what controls we are to rely upon and what tests we are going to 
perform.  Perform test of controls. 

• Develop audit programs to incorporate the consideration of financial statement assertions, 
specific audit objectives, and appropriate audit procedures to achieve the specified objectives. 

• Discuss and resolve any accounting, auditing and reporting matters which have been identified. 
 
  



 

34 
 

Phase II – Execution of Audit Plan 
 

The audit team will complete a major portion of transaction testing and audit requirements during this 
phase.  The procedures performed during this period will enable us to identify any matter that may impact 
the completion of our work or require the attention of management.  Tasks to be performed in Phase II 
include, but are not limited to the following: 

 
• Apply analytical procedures to further assist in the determination of the nature, timing, and extent 

of auditing procedures used to obtain evidential matter for specific account balances or classes 
of transactions. 

• Perform tests of account balances and transactions through sampling, vouching, confirmation and 
other analytical procedures.  

• Perform tests of compliance. 
 
Phase III - Completion and Delivery 

 
In this phase of the audit, we will complete the tasks related to year-end balances and financial reporting. 
All reports will be reviewed with management before issuance, and the partners will be available to meet 
and discuss our report and address any questions. Tasks to be performed in Phase III include, but are 
not limited to the following: 

 
• Perform final analytical procedures. 
• Review information and make inquiries for subsequent events. 
• Meeting with Management to discuss preparation of draft financial statements and any potential 

findings or recommendations. 
 

You should expect more from your accounting firm than a signature in your annual financial report. Our 
concept of truly responsive professional service emphasizes taking an active interest in the issues of 
concern to our clients and serving as an effective resource in dealing with those issues. In following this 
approach, we not only audit financial information with hindsight but also consider the foresight you apply 
in managing operations. 
 
Application of this approach in developing our management letter is particularly important given the 
increasing financial pressures and public scrutiny facing today’s public officials.  We will prepare the 
management letter at the completion of our final procedures. 

 
In preparing this management letter, we will initially review any draft comments or recommendations with 
management. In addition, we will take necessary steps to ensure that matters are communicated to those 
charged with governance. 
 
In addition to communicating any recommendations, we will also communicate the following, if any: 
 

• Significant audit adjustments; 
• Significant deficiencies or material weaknesses; 
• Disagreements with management; and, 
• Difficulties encountered in performing the audit. 
 

Our findings will contain a statement of condition describing the situation and the area that needs 
strengthening, what should be corrected and why. Our suggestions will withstand the basic tests of 
corrective action: 
  



 

35 
 

• The recommendation must be cost effective; 
• The recommendations are to be the simplest to effectuate in order to correct a problem; 
• The recommendation must go to the heart of the problem and not just correct symptomatic matter; 

and 
• The corrective action must take into account why the deficiency occurred. 

 
To assure full agreement with facts and circumstances, we will fully discuss each item with Management 
prior to the final exit conference. This policy means there will be no “surprises” in the management letter 
and fosters a professional, cooperative atmosphere. 
 
Communications 
 
We emphasize a continuous, year-round dialogue between the District and our management team. We 
typically begin our audit process with an entrance conference before the onsite fieldwork begins. We 
regularly communicate through personal telephone calls and electronic mail throughout the audit and on 
a regular basis. Our clients have the ability to transmit information to us on our secure client portal with 
the ability to assign different staff with separate log on and viewing capability.  This further facilitates 
efficiency as all assigned users receive electronic mail notification as soon as new information has been 
posted into the portal.  We strive to continue to keep an open line of communication through the fieldwork 
and ending with an exit conference.      
 
 

Additional Services 
 

 
CONSULTING / MANAGEMENT ADVISORY SERVICES 

 
Grau & Associates also provide a broad range of other management consulting services.  Our expertise 
has been consistently utilized by Governmental and Non-Profit entities throughout Florida.  Examples of 
engagements performed are as follows: 
 
• Accounting systems 
• Development of budgets 
• Organizational structures 
• Financing alternatives 
• IT Auditing 
 

• Fixed asset records 
• Cost reimbursement  
• Indirect cost allocation 
• Grant administration and compliance 
 

 
ARBITRAGE 

 
The federal government has imposed complex rules to restrict the use of tax-exempt financing. Their 
principal purpose is to eliminate any significant arbitrage incentives in a tax-exempt issue. We have 
determined the applicability of these requirements and performed the rebate calculations for more than 
150 bond issues, including both fixed and variable rate bonds. Please find a partial list of clients served 
on the following pages. 
 
 



 

36 
 

GRAU HAS PROVIDED ARBITRAGE SERVICES FOR 
GOVERMENTAL CLIENTS INCLUDING: 

 
 

 Aberdeen Community Development District  Heritage Palms Community Development District 
 Amelia Walk Community Development District  Heritage Pines Community Development District 
 Arlington Ridge Community Development District  Heritage Springs Community Development District 
 Bartram Park Community Development District  Huntington Community Development District 
 Bartram Springs Community Development District  Indigo East Community Development District 
 Bayside Improvement District  Islands of Doral III Community Development District 
 Baywinds Community Development District  Julington Creek Plantation Comm. Dev. District 
 Beacon Lakes Community Development District  Laguna Lakes Community Development District 
 Beacon Tradeport Community Development District  Lake Ashton Community Development District 
 Bobcat Trail Community Development District  Lake Ashton II Community Development District 
 Boynton Village Community Development District  Lake Powell Residential Golf Community Dev. District 
 Brandy Creek Community Development District  Lakes By The Bay South Community Dev. District 
 Briger Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 1 Community Development District 
 Brighton Lakes Community Development District  Landmark at Doral Community Development District 
 Brooks of Bonita Springs Community Development District  Jurlington Creek Plantation Community Dev. District 
 Candller Hills East Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 2 Community Development District 
 Capital Region Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 3 Community Development District 
 Cedar Pointe Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 4 Community Development District 
 Championsgate Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 5 Community Development District 
 Chevel West Community Development District  Lakewood Ranch 6 Community Development District 
 City Place Community Development District  Legacy Springs Improvement District No. 1 
 Coconut Cay Community Development District  Live Oak Community Development District 
 Colonial Country Club Community Development District  Main Street Community Development District 
 Cory Lakes Community Development District  Marshall Creek Community Development District 
 Country Greens Community Development District  Meadow Pointe II Community Development District 
 Creekside Community Development District  Mediterra North Community Development District 
 Double Branch Community Development District  Mediterra South Community Development District 
 Dunes Community Development District  Mediterranea Community Development District 
 Durbin Crossing Community Development District  Midtown Miami Community Development District 
 East Bonita Beach Road Plantation Comm. Development District  Moody River Community Development District 
 East Homestead Community Development District  Monterra Community Development District 
 East Park Community Development District  Narcossee Community Development District 
 Enclave at Black Point Marina Community Development District  North Springs Improvement District 
 Falcon Trace Community Development District  Oakstead Community Development District 
 Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District I  Old Palm Community Development District 
 Fiddler’s Creek Community Development District II  Orchid Grove Community Development District 
 Fleming Island Plantation Comm. Dev. District  OTC Community Development District 
 Grand Haven Community Development District  Overoaks Community Development District 
 Griffin Lakes Community Development District  Palm Glades Community Development District 
 Habitat Community Development District  Parklands Lee Community Development District 
 Hamal Community Development District  Parklands West Community Development District 
 Hammocks Community Development District  Parkway Center Community Development District 
 Harbour Lakes Estates Comm. Development District  Pine Air Lakes Community Development District 
 Harmony Community Development District  Pine Island Community Development District 
 Heritage Bay Community Development District  Pine Ridge Plantation Community Development District 



ARBITRAGE SERVICES (Continued) 
 

37 
 

 Portofino Cove Community Development District 
 Portofino Isles Community Development District 

 Tuscany Reserve Community Development District 
 University Place Community Development District 

 Portofino Landings Community Development District  Urban Orlando Community Development District 
 Portofino Shores Community Development District  Vasari Community Development District 
 Portofino Vista Community Development District  Verandah East Community Development District 
 Reunion East Community Development District  Verandah West Community Development District 
 Reunion West Community Development District  Verano Center Community Development District 
 Ridgewood Trails Community Development District  Villa Portofino East Community Development District 
 River Place on the St. Lucie Community Dev. District  Villa Vizcaya Community Development District 
 Rolling Hills Community Development District  Villages of Westport Comm. Development District 
 Sampson Creek Community Development District  Villasol Community Development District 
 South Dade Venture Community Development District  Vista Lakes Community Development District 
 South Village Community Development District  Vizcaya Community Development District 
 Spicewood Community Development District  Vizcaya in Kendall Community Development District 
 Split Pine Community Development District  Walnut Creek Community Development District 
 Stonegate Community Development District  Waterchase Community Development District 
 Stoneybrook Community Development District  Waterford Estates Community Development District 

 Stoneybrook West Community Development District  Waterstone Community Development District 

 The Crossings at Fleming Island Comm. Dev. District  Wentworth Estates Community Development District 

 Tison’s Landing Community Development District  
 Treeline Preserve Community Development District  
 Turnbull Creek Community Development District 

 Westchester Community Development District #1 
 Woodlands Community Development District 
 Wynnfield Lakes Community Development District 

  
  

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
We look forward to providing Panther Trace II Community Development 
District with our resources and experience to accomplish not only those 
minimum requirements set forth in your Request for Proposal, but to 
exceed those expectations! 

 
 

For even more information on Grau & Associates  
please visit us on www.graucpa.com. 

 
 
 

Grau provides value and services 
above and beyond 

the traditional auditor’s “product” 

http://www.graucpa.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 11. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Panther Trace II Community 
 Development District 

 
 
 

 Proposer 
 

DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants 

 

2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34950 

(772) 461-8833 
 

591 SE Port St. Lucie Boulevard 
Port Saint Lucie, Florida 34984 

(772) 878-1952 
 

Contact: 
 

Jim Hartley, CPA 
Principal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

     
Letter of Transmittal 

 
Professional Qualifications 

 
 Professional Staff Resources ................................................................................................... 1-2 
 Current and Near Future Workload ..........................................................................................    2 
 Identification of Audit Team ....................................................................................................... 2 
 Resumes .................................................................................................................................... 3-5 
 Governmental Audit Experience ................................................................................................. 6 

     
 

Additional Data 
 

 Procedures for Ensuring Quality Control & Confidentiality ..................................................... 7 
 Independence ............................................................................................................................ 7-8 
 Computer Auditing Capabilities .................................................................................................  8 
 Contracts of Similar Nature ........................................................................................................  9 

 
Technical Approach 
 
 Agreement to Meet or Exceed the Performance Specifications ............................................   10 
 Tentative Audit Schedule .......................................................................................................    11 
 Description of Audit Approach ........................................................................................    12-15 
 Proposed  Audit Fee ................................................................................................................    16 

 
   

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 



  

DMHB 
DIBARTOLOMEO, MCBEE, HARTLEY & BARNES, P.A. 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 
Audit Selection Committee  
 
Dear Committee Members: 
 
We are pleased to have this opportunity to present the qualifications of DiBartolomeo, 
McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. (DMHB) to serve as Panther Trace II Community 
Development District’s independent auditors.  The audit is a significant engagement 
demanding various professional resources, governmental knowledge and expertise, and, 
most importantly, experience serving Florida local governments.  DMHB understands 
the services required and is committed to performing these services within the required 
time frame.  We have the staff available to complete this engagement in a timely 
fashion.  We audit several entities across the State making it feasible to schedule and 
provide services at the required locations. 
 

Proven Track Record— Our clients know our people and the quality of our work.  
We have always been responsive, met deadlines, and been willing to go the extra 
mile with the objective of providing significant value to mitigate the cost of the audit. 
This proven track record of successfully working together to serve governmental 
clients will enhance the quality of services we provide. 
 

Experience—DMHB has a history of providing quality professional services to an 
impressive list of public sector clients in Florida.  We currently serve a large number 
of public sector entities in Florida, including cities, villages, special districts, as well 
as a large number of community development districts.  Our firm has performed in 
excess of 100 community development district audits.  In addition, our senior 
management team members have between 25 and 35 years experience in serving 
Florida governments.  DMHB is a recognized leader in providing services to 
governmental and non-profit agencies within the State of Florida.  Through our 
experience in performing audits, we have been able to increase our audit efficiency 
and therefore reduce cost.  We have continually passed this cost saving on to our 
clients and will continue to do so in the future.  As a result of our experience and 
expertise, we have developed an effective and efficient audit approach designed to 
meet or exceed the performance specifications in accordance with audit standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States with minimal disruption to your operations.  
Our firm has frequent technical updates to keep our personnel informed and up to 
date on all changes that are occurring within the industry. 

 
2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, Florida 34950772-461-8833  Fax: 772-461-8872 
591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984772-878-1952Fax: 772-878-1709 

 
Member AICPA                              Member AICPA Division for CPA Firms                               Member AICPA 

Private Company Practice Section 
      

WWW.DMHBCPA.NET 



 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Timeliness – In order to meet the Districts needs, we will perform interim internal 
control testing  from unaudited preliminary general ledgers provided.   We will also 
review all minutes and subsequent needs related to the review of the minutes.  Follow up 
review will be completed as necessary in order to meet the required deadlines. 
 
Communication and Knowledge Sharing— Another driving force behind our 
service approach is frequent, candid and open communication with management with no 
surprises.  During the course of the audit, we will communicate with management on a 
regular basis to provide you with a status report on the audit and to discuss any issues 
that arise, potential management letter comments, or potential audit differences.   

 
In the accompanying proposal, you will find additional information upon which you 
can evaluate DMHB’s qualifications. Our full team is in place and waiting to serve 
you.  Please contact us at 2222 Colonial Road, Suite 200 Fort Pierce, FL 34950. Our 
phone number is (772) 461-8833. We look forward to further discussion on how our 
team can work together with you. 
 
 

 Very truly yours, 
 
                                                               
  
 DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A.   
                  
                  
                

 
  



1 
  

 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS  
 

DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. is a local public accounting firm with offices in the cities of 
Fort Pierce and Port St. Lucie.  The firm was formed in 1982.   
 
 

 Professional Staff Resources 
 

Our services will be delivered through personnel in both our Port St. Lucie and Ft. Pierce offices, 
located at 591 S.E. Port St. Lucie Blvd., Port St. Lucie, FL 34984 and 2222 Colonial Road, Suite 
200, Fort Pierce, Florida 34950, respectively.  DMHB has a total of 19 professional staff including 9 
with extensive experience serving governmental entities. 
 

Professional Staff Number of  
Classification Professionals

Partner 4 
Managers 2 
Senior 2 
Staff 11 
  19 

 
 
 

DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes provides a variety of accounting, auditing, tax litigation 
support, estate planning, and consulting services.  Some of the governmental, non-profit accounting, 
auditing and advisory services currently provided to clients include: 
 
 Annual financial and compliance audits including Single Audits of State and Federal 

financial assistance programs under the OMB A-133 audit criteria 
 
 Issuance of Comfort Letters, consent letters, and parity certificates in conjunction with 

the issuance of tax-exempt debt obligations, including compiling financial data and 
interim period financial statement reviews 

 
 Assisting in compiling historical financial data for first-time and subsequent submissions 

for the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
 



2 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (CONTINUED) 
 

 Professional Staff Resources (Continued) 
 
 Audits of franchise fees received from outside franchisees 

 
 Preparation of annual reports to the State Department of Banking and Finance 

 
 Audits of Internal Controls – Governmental Special Project 

 
 Assistance with Implementation of current GASB pronouncements  

 

 
 Current and Near Future Workload 

 
In order to better serve and provide timely and informative financial data, we have comprised an 
experienced audit team.  Our present and future workloads will permit the proposed audit team to 
perform these audits within the time schedule required and meet all deadlines.   
 

 Identification of Audit Team 
 

The team is composed of people who are experienced, professional, and creative.  They fully 
understand your business and will provide you with reliable opinions.  In addition, they will make a 
point to maintain ongoing dialogue with each other and management about the status of our services. 
 
The auditing firm you select is only as good as the people who serve you.  We are extremely proud 
of the outstanding team we have assembled for your engagement.  Our team brings many years of 
relevant experience coupled with the technical skill, knowledge, authority, dedication, and most of 
all, the commitment you need to meet your government reporting obligations and the challenges that 
will result from the changing accounting standards. 
 
A flow chart of the audit team and brief resumes detailing individual team members’ 
experience in each of the relevant areas follow. 
 

Jim Hartley, CPA – Engagement Partner (resume attached) 
Will assist in the field as main contact 
 
Jay McBee, CPA – Technical Reviewer (resume attached) 
 
Theresa Goldstein - Senior (resume attached) 
 
Staff – TBA



  

Jim Hartley 
Partner – DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes 

 
Experience and Training 
 
Jim has over 25 years of public accounting experience and would serve as the engagement partner. His 
experience and training include: 
 
 25 years of non-profit and governmental experience. 
 Specializing in serving entities ranging from Government to Associations and Special District audits. 
 Has performed audits and advisory services for a variety of public sector entities. 
 Has extensive experience performing audits of federal grant recipients in accordance with the Single 

Audit Act and the related Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines.  
  Experienced in maintaining the GFOA Certificate of Achievement. 
 120 hours of CPE credits over the past 3 years.   
 

Recent Engagements 
 
Has provided audit services on governmental entities including towns, villages, cities, counties, special 
districts and community development districts.  Jim has assisted with financial statement preparation, system 
implementation, and a variety of services to a wide range of non-profit and governmental entities.  Jim 
currently provides internal audit and consulting services to governmental entities and non-profit agencies to 
assist in implementing and maintaining “best practice” accounting policies and procedures. Jim provides 
auditing services to the Fort Pierce Utilities Authority, St. Lucie County Fire District, City of Port St. Lucie, 
Tradition CDD #1 – 10, Southern Groves CDD #1-6, Multiple CDD audits, Town of St. Lucie Village, Town 
of Sewall’s Point, Town of Jupiter Island along with several other entities, including Condo and Homeowner 
Associations. 
 
Education and Registrations 
 
 Bachelor of Science in Accounting – Sterling College. 
 Certified Public Accountant 

 
Professional Affiliations 
 
 Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Member of the Florida Government Finance Officers Association 

 
Volunteer Service 
 
 Treasurer & Executive Board - St. Lucie County Chamber of Commerce 
 Budget Advisory Board - St. Lucie County School District 
 Past Treasurer - Exchange Club for Prevention of Child Abuse & Exchange Foundation Board 
 Board of Directors – State Division of Juvenile Justice 

 
 



 

  
 

 
Jay L. McBee 

Partner – DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes 
 
Experience and Training 
 
Jay has over 35 years of public accounting experience and would serve as the technical reviewer on the  
audit.  His experience and training include: 
 
 35 years of government experience. 
 Specializing in serving local government entities. 
 Has performed audits and advisory services for a variety of public sector entities including counties, 

cities, special districts, and school districts. 
 Has experience performing audits of federal grant recipients in accordance with the Single Audit Act 

and the related Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines, including Circular A-133 and the 
Rules of the Auditor General.  

 Has extensive experience in performing pension audits. 
 Experienced in developing and maintaining the GFOA Certificate of Achievement. 
 120 Hours of relevant government CPE credits over the past 3 years. 
 Experience in municipal bond and other governmental-financing options and offerings.  

 
Recent Engagements 
 
Has provided auditing services on local governmental entities including towns, villages, cities, counties, 
special district and community development districts. Jay has assisted with financial preparation, system 
implementation, and a variety of government services to a wide range of governmental entities.  Jay currently 
provides auditing services to the City of Port St. Lucie, City of Okeechobee Pension Trust Funds, St. Lucie 
County Fire District Pension funds, along with several other non-profit and governmental entities.     
 
Education and Registrations 
 
 Bachelor of Science in Accounting and Quantitative Business Management – West Virginia University. 
 Certified Public Accountant 

 
Professional Affiliations 
 
 Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Member of the Florida Government Finance Officers Association 

 
Volunteer Service 
 

 Member of the St. Lucie County Citizens Budget Committee  
 Finance committee for the First United Methodist Church  
 Treasurer of Boys & Girls Club of St. Lucie County 

 
 



 

  
 

 
Theresa Goldstein 

Supervisor – DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes 
 

Experience and training 
Theresa has over 15 years of public accounting experience and would serve as the supervisor for the 
Constitutional Officers.  Her experience and training include: 
 15 years of government experience. 
 Specializing in serving local government entities. 
 Has performed audits and advisory services for a variety of public sector entities including 

counties, cities, towns and special districts. 
 Has extensive experience performing audits of federal grant recipients in accordance with the 

Single Audit Act and the related Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines, 
including Circular A-133 and the Rules of the Auditor General.  

  Experienced in maintaining the GFOA Certificate of Achievement. 
 100 hours of relevant government CPE credits over the past 3 years. 
 

Recent Engagements  
Has provided audit services on governmental entities including towns, villages, cities, counties, 
special districts and community development districts.  Theresa has assisted with financial statement 
preparation, system implementation, and a variety of services to a wide range of non-profit and 
governmental entities.  Theresa currently provides internal audit and consulting services to multiple 
agencies to assist in implementing and maintaining “best practice” accounting policies and 
procedures. Engagements include City of Port St. Lucie, St. Lucie County Fire District, Town of 
Sewall’s Point, Town of Jupiter Island, Multiple CDD audits, Tradition CDD #1-10, Southern 
Groves CDD #1-6  and Town of St. Lucie Village.   
 
Education and Registrations 
 Bachelor of Science in Finance – University of Central Florida 
 Masters of Business Administration with concentration in Accounting – Bryant College  

 

Professional Affiliations 
 

 Associate Member of the Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
 Member of the Florida Government Finance Officers Association 



 
 

 6 

PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)  
 
 Governmental Audit Experience 

 

DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A., through its principals and members, has provided 
continuous in-depth professional accounting, auditing, and consulting services to local government 
units, nonprofit organizations, and commercial clients.  Our professionals have developed 
considerable expertise in performing governmental audits and single audits and in preparing 
governmental financial statements in conformance with continually evolving GASB 
pronouncements, statements, and interpretations.  All of the public sector entities we serve annually 
are required to be in accordance with GASB pronouncements and government auditing standards.  
We currently perform several Federal and State single audits in compliance with OMB Circular A-
133 and under the Florida Single Audit Act.  Our professionals are also experienced in assisting their 
clients with preparing Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (GFOA). 

 
All work performed by our firm is closely supervised by experienced certified public accountants.  
Only our most seasoned CPA’s perform consulting services.  Some of the professional accounting, 
auditing, and management consulting services currently provided to our local governmental clients 
include: 

 
 Annual financial and compliance audits including Single Audits of State and Federal 

financial assistance programs under OMB A-133 audit criteria and the Florida Single 
Audit Act 

 Assisting in compiling historical financial data for first-time and supplemental 
submissions for GFOA Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting 

 Audits of franchise fees received from outside franchisees 
 Assistance with Implementation of GASB-34 
 Internal audit functions 
 Fixed assets review and updating cost/depreciation allocations and methods 
 

 
 



 
 

 7 

ADDITIONAL DATA 
 

 Procedures for Ensuring Quality Control & Confidentiality 
 

Quality control in any CPA firm can never be taken for granted.  It requires a continuing 
commitment to professional excellence. DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes is formally 
dedicated to that commitment. 

 
In an effort to continue to maintain the standards of working excellence required by our firm, 
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, P.A. joined the Quality Review Program of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  To be a participating member firm, a firm 
must obtain an independent compliance review of its quality control policies and procedures to 
ascertain the firm’s compliance with existing auditing standards on the applicable engagements.  
The scope of peer review is comprehensive in that it specifically reviews the following quality 
control policies and procedures of the participating firm: 

 
 Professional, economic, and administrative independence 
 Assignment of professional personnel to engagements 
 Consultation on technical matters 
 Supervision of engagement personnel 
 Hiring and employment of personnel 
 Professional development 
 Advancement 
 Acceptance and continuance of clients 
 Inspection and review system 

 
       Independence 

 
Independence is a hallmark of our profession.  We encourage our staff to use professional 
judgment in situations where our independence could be impaired or the perception of a conflict 
of interest might exist.  In the governmental sector, public perception is as important as 
professional standards.  Therefore, independent auditors must exercise utmost care in the 
performance of their duties. 

 
Our firm has provided continuous certified public accounting services in the government sector 
for 31 years, and we are independent of the Community Development Districts as defined by 
the following rules, regulations, and standards: 

 



 
 

 8 

ADDITIONAL DATA (CONTINUED) 
 
 Independence (Continued) 

 
 Au Section 220 – Statements on Auditing Standards issued by the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants 
 ET Sections 101 and 102 – Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants 
 Chapter 21A-21, Florida Administrative Code 
 Section 473.315, Florida Statutes 
 Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 

 
 Computer Auditing Capabilities  

 
DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes’ strong computer capabilities as demonstrated by our 
progressive approach to computer auditing and extensive use of microcomputers.  Jay McBee is 
the MIS partner for DMHB.  Jay has extensive experience in auditing and evaluating various 
computer systems and would provide these services in this engagement. 
 
We view the computer operation as an integral part of its accounting systems.  We would 
evaluate the computer control environment to: 

 
 Understand the computer control environment’s effect on internal controls 
 Conclude on whether aspects of the environment require special audit attention 
 Make preliminary determination of comments for inclusion in our management letter 

 
                 This evaluation includes: 

 
 System hardware and software 
 Organization and administration 
 Access 

 
                                                                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

9 

 
 

Contracts of Similar Nature within References 
 

Client Years 

Annual 
Audit In 

Accordance 
With GAAS 

Engagement 
Partner 

Incl. Utility 
Audit/ 

Consulting 

GFOA 
Cert. 

GASB 34 
Implementation 

& Assistance  

Total 
Hours 

St. Lucie County Fire District 
Karen Russell, Clerk-Treasurer 
(772)462-2300 

1984 - 
Current  Jim Hartley    250-300  

City of Fort Pierce 
Johnna Morris, Finance Director 
(772)-460-2200 

2005- 
current  Mark Barnes    800 

Fort Pierce Utilities Authority 
Nina Hurtubise, Finance Director 
(772)-466-1600 

2005-
current  Jim Hartley    600 

Town of Jupiter Island 
Mike Ventura 
(772)-545-0104 

 
2010  Jim Hartley    200 

Town of Sewall’s Point 
Pamela Walker 
(772) 287-2455 

2010 
 Jim Hartley    225 

Town of St. Lucie Village 
Diane Robertson, Town Clerk 
(772) 595-0663 

 
1999 – 
current 

 Jim Hartley    100 

City of Okeechobee Pension Trust 
Funds 
Marita Rice, Supervisor of Finance 
(863)763-9460 

 
1998 – 
current  Jay McBee    60 

St. Lucie County Fire District 175 
Pension Trust Fund 
Chris Bushman , Captain 
(772) 462-2300 

 
1990 – 
current  Jay McBee    60 

Tradition Community Development 
District 1-10 
Alan Mishlove ,District Finance 
Manager 
(407)382-3256 

 
2002 - 
current  Jim Hartley    350 

Union Park Community 
Development District 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
(321)263-0132 

2013-
current 

 Jim Hartley    50 
 

Deer Island Community  
Development District 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
(321)263-0132 

2013-
current 

 Jim Hartley    50 

Park Creek Community 
Development District 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
(321)263-0132 
 

2013-
current 

 Jim Hartley    50 

Waterleaf  Community 
Development District 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
(321)263-0132 

2013-
current 

         Jim Hartley         50 
 

 
 
 



 
 

10 

TECHNICAL APPROACH 
a. An Express Agreement to Meet or Exceed the Performance Specifications. 

1. The audit will be conducted in compliance with the following requirements: 
 

a. Rules of the Auditor General for form and content of governmental audits 
b. Regulations of the State Department of Banking and Finance 
c. Audits of State and Local Governmental Units-American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants. 
2. The audit report shall contain the opinion of the auditor in reference to all financial statements, 

and an opinion reflecting compliance with applicable legal provisions. 
3. We will also provide the required copies of the audit report, the management letter, any related 

reports on internal control weaknesses and one copy of the adjusting journal entries and 
financial work papers. 

4. The auditor shall, at no additional charge, make all related work papers available to any 
Federal or State agency upon request in accordance with Federal and State Laws and 
Regulations. 

5. We will work in cooperation with the District, its underwriters and bond council in regard to 
any bond issues that may occur during the term of the contract. 

6. The financial statements shall be prepared in conformity with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement Number 34, 63 and 65.  

 
 
 
We will commit to issuing the audit for each Fiscal year by June 1st of the following year.  In order to 
ensure this we will perform interim internal control testing as required by January 31st from unaudited 
preliminary general ledgers provided.  The remaining testing will be completed no later than May 1st.  We 
will also review all minutes and subsequent needs related to the review of the minutes by January 30th.  
Follow up review will be completed as necessary.  Our goal is to provide timely financial reporting, any 
deadlines imposed by the district will be considered in order to accommodate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

11 

b. A Tentative Schedule for Performing the Key phases of the Audit – proposed for FYE 2018 
and 2019 

                                                        
Audit Phase and Tasks 

  
      
Oct. 

N 
Nov. 

 
Dec. 

 
Jan. 

 
Feb. 

 
Mar. 

 
Apr. 

I. Planning Phase:        
Meetings and discussions with Panther 
Trace II Community Development District 
personnel regarding operating, accounting 
and reporting matters  

 
 

      

Discuss management expectations, 
strategies and objectives 

       

Review operations        
Develop engagement plan        
Study and evaluate internal controls        
Conduct preliminary analytical review        

II. Detailed Audit Phase:        
Conduct final risk assessment        
Finalize audit approach plan        
Perform substantive tests of account 
balances 

       

Perform single audit procedures (if 
applicable) 

       

Perform statutory compliance testing        
III. Closing Phase:        

Review subsequent events, contingencies 
and commitments 

       

Complete audit work and obtain 
management representations 

       

Review proposed audit adjustments with 
client 

       

IV. Reporting Phase:        
Review or assist in preparation of 
financial statement for Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 

       

Prepare management letter and other 
special reports 

       

Exit conference with Panther Trace II 
Community Development District 
officials and management 

       

Delivery of final reports          
 



 
 

12 

 
 

b. SPECIFIC AUDIT APPROACH 
 

Our partners are not strangers who show up for an entrance conference and an 
exit conference.  We have developed an audit plan that allows the partners to directly 
supervise our staff in the field.  By assigning two partners to the audit, we will have a partner 
on-site for a significant portion of the fieldwork.  This also gives the District an additional 
contact individual for questions or problems that may arise during the audit. 
 
The scope of our services will include a financial, as well as, a compliance audit of the 
District’s financial statements.  Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States.  Additionally, our audit will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, which govern the conduct of local government 
entity audits performed in the State of Florida.   
 
Our audit approach places emphasis on the accounting information system and how the 
data is recorded, rather than solely on the verification of numbers on a financial statement.  
This approach enables us to: 

      
 Maximize our understanding of the District’s operating environment 
 Minimize time required conducting the audit since we start with broad considerations and 

narrow to specific audit objectives in critical areas 
 

Our audit approach consists of four phases encompassing our audit process: 
 

 Planning Phase 
 Detailed Audit Phase 
 Closing Phase 
 Reporting 

 
Planning Phase 
  

Meetings and Expectations: 
 

Our first step in this phase will be to set up a planning meeting with the financial and operating 
management of Panther Trace II Community Development District.  Our goal here is to eliminate 
“surprises.”  By meeting with responsible officials early on we can discuss significant accounting 
policies, closing procedures and timetables, planned timing of our audit procedures and 
expectations of our work.  This will also be the starting point for our discussions with 
management related to SAS No. 99-Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit.   
Inquiries will be made regarding managements knowledge of fraud and on management’s views 
regarding the risk of fraud. 



 
 

13 

Review Operations and Develop Engagement Plan 
 

It is critical that we understand the District’s operating environment.  To do this we will obtain 
and review such items as, organizational charts, recent financial statements, budget information, 
major contracts and lease agreements.  We will also gather other information necessary to 
increase our understanding of the District’s operations, organization, and internal control.   

 
Study and Evaluate Internal Control 
 

As part of general planning, we will obtain an understanding and assessment of the District’s 
control environment.  This assessment involves a review of management’s operating style, 
written internal control procedures, and the District’s accounting system.  The assessment is 
necessary to determine if we can rely on control procedures and thus reduce the extent of 
substantive testing.   

 
We then test compliance with established control procedures by ascertaining that the significant 
strengths within the system are functioning as described to us. Generally, transactions are selected 
and reviewed in sufficient detail to permit us to formulate conclusions regarding compliance with 
control procedures and the extent of operation compliance with pertinent laws and regulations.  
This involves gaining an understanding of the District’s procedures, laws and regulations, and 
testing systems for compliance by examining contracts, invoices, bid procedures, and other 
documents.  After testing controls, we then evaluate the results of those tests and decide whether 
we can rely on controls and thus reduce other audit procedures. 

 
Conduct Preliminary Analytical Review 

 
Also during the planning stage, we undertake analytical procedures that aid us in focusing our 
energies in the right direction.  We call these analytical reviews. 

 
A properly designed analytical review can be a very effective audit procedure in audits of 
governmental units.  Analytical reviews consist of more than just a comparison of current-year 
actual results to prior-year actual results. Very effective analytical review techniques include 
trend analysis covering a number of years and comparisons of information not maintained totally 
within the financial accounting system, such as per capita information, prevailing market interest 
rates, housing statistics, etc. 

 
Some examples of effective analytical reviews performed together and/or individually include: 

 
 Comparison of current-year actual results with current-year budget for the current and past 

years with investigation of significant differences and/or trends 
 Trend analysis of the percentage of current-year revenues to current-year rates for the current     

and previous years with investigation of significant changes in the collection percentage 
 Trend analysis of the percentage of expenditures by function for the current and previous 

years with investigation of significant changes in percentages by department 
 Monthly analysis of receipts compared to prior years to detect trends that may have audit 

implications 
 

Conclusions reached enable us to determine the nature, timing and extent of other substantive 
procedures. 
 

 



 
 

14 

Detailed Audit Phase 
 

 

Conduct Final Risk Assessment and Prepare Audit Programs 
 
Risk assessment requires evaluating the likelihood of errors occurring that could have a material 
affect on the financial statements being audited.  The conclusions we reach are based on many 
evaluations of internal control, systems, accounts, and transactions that occur throughout the 
audit.  After evaluating the results of our tests of control and our final risk assessment we can 
develop detailed audit programs. 

 

Perform Substantive Tests of Account Balances 
 

These tests are designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the validity of the information 
produced by the accounting system.  Substantive tests involve such things as examining invoices 
supporting payments, confirmation of balances with independent parties, analytical review 
procedures, and physical inspection of assets.  All significant accounts will be subjected to 
substantive procedures.  Substantive tests provide direct evidence of the completeness, accuracy, 
and validity of data. 

 
Perform Single Audit Procedures (if applicable) 

 
During the planning phase of the audit we will request and review schedules of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance.  These schedules will be the basis for our 
determination of the specific programs we will test.   

 
In documenting our understanding of the internal control system for the financial statement audit, 
we will identify control activities that impact major federal and state programs as well.  This will 
allow us to test certain controls for the financial audit and the single audit concurrently.  We will 
then perform additional tests of controls for each federal and state program selected for testing.  
We will then evaluate the results of the test of controls to determine the nature, timing and extent 
of substantive testing necessary to determine compliance with major program requirements. 



 
 

15 

Perform Statutory Compliance Testing 
 

We have developed audit programs for Panther Trace II Community Development District 
designed to test Florida Statutes as required by the Auditor General.   These programs include test 
procedures such as general inquiries, confirmation from third parties, and examination of specific 
documents. 

                                                                                                                                                                       
Closing Phase 
 

During the closing phase we perform detail work paper reviews, request legal letters, review 
subsequent events and proposed audit adjustments.  Communication with the client is critical in this 
phase to ensure that the information necessary to prepare financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States has been obtained.  

 
Reporting Phase 

 
Financial Statement Preparation 

 
As a local firm, we spend a considerable amount of time on financial statement preparation and 
support.  With this in mind, we can assist in certain portions of the preparation of financial 
statements or simply review a draft of financials prepared by your staff.  We let you determine 
our level of involvement. 

 
Management Letters 

 
We want to help you solve problems before they become major. 
 
Our management letters go beyond citing possible deficiencies in the District’s internal control 
structures.  They identify opportunities for increasing revenues, decreasing costs, improving 
management information, protecting assets and improving operational efficiency. 
 
The diversity of experience of our personnel and their independent and objective viewpoints 
make the comments, observations, and conclusions presented in our management letters a 
valuable source of information.  We have provided positive solution-oriented objective 
recommendations to our governmental clients regarding investments, accounting accuracy, data 
processing, revenue bonds, payroll, utility billing, purchasing, budgeting, risk management, and 
internal auditing. 

  
This review ensures the integrity of the factual data in the management letter but does not influence 
or impair our independence. 

 
Exit Conferences and Delivery of Reports 

 
We anticipate meeting with appropriate District personnel in February and issuing the final 
required reports by the May meeting of each year.     

 
 
 



 
 

16 

PROPOSED AUDIT FEE FOR EACH YEAR OF THE THREE YEARS 
 

DiBartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes P.A. will perform the annual audit of Panther Trace II 
Community Development District for the three years as follows: 
  
 September 30, 2018         $3,200 
 September 30, 2019     $3,250 
 September 30, 2020     $3,450 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 12. 



 

 PANTHER TRACE II - AUDITOR EVALUATION 
  

 
FY 2018 

 
 

FY 2019 

 
 

FY 2020 

 
 

3 year Total 

Ability of 
Personnel 20 

Pts. 

Proposer 
Experience 

20 Pts. 

Understanding 
Scope of Work 20 

Points 

Ability to Furnish 
Required Service 

20 Points 

 
Price 

20 Points 

 
 

TOTAL POINTS 
  

GRAU, CPA $ 3,600.00 $3,700.00 $3,800.00 $11,100       
  

DIBARTOLOMEO, CPA $3,200.00 $3,250.00 $3,450.00 $  9,900       
  

           

  
  

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 13. 
 



 
 

 

            Specializing In Tax - Exempt Bond Services 

LLS Tax Solutions 
2172 W. Nine Mile Rd. 
#352 
Pensacola, FL 32534 
Telephone: 850-754-0311 
Email: liscott@llstax.com 
 

 
 
November 8, 2017 
 
 
Panther Trace II Community Development District  
c/o Development Planning and Financing Group, Inc. 
1060 Maitland Center Commons Blvd, Suite 340 
Maitland, Florida 32751 
  
 
Thank you for choosing LLS Tax Solutions Inc. (“LLS Tax”) to provide arbitrage services to Panther 
Trace II Community Development District (“Client”) for the following bond issues.  This Engagement 
Letter describes the scope of the LLS Tax services, the respective responsibilities of LLS Tax and 
Client relating to this engagement and the fees LLS Tax expects to charge. 

•   $11,775,000 Panther Trace II Community Development District (Hillsborough County, Florida)  
Special Assessment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014   
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The procedures that we will perform are as follows: 

• Assist in calculation of the bond yield, unless previously computed and provided to us. 

• Assist in determination of the amount, if any, of required rebate to the federal government. 

• Issuance of a report presenting the cumulative results since the issue date of the issue of bonds. 

• Preparation of necessary reports and Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) forms to accompany any 
required payment to the federal government. 

As a part of our engagement, we will read certain documents associated with each issue of bonds for 
which services are being rendered.  We will determine gross proceeds of each issue of bonds based on 
the information provided in such bond documents.  You will have sole responsibility for determining 
any other amounts not discussed in those documents that may constitute gross proceeds of each series 
of bonds for the purposes of the arbitrage requirements.   

TAX POSITIONS AND REPORTABLE TRANSACTIONS 

Because the tax law is not always clear, we will use our professional judgment in resolving questions 
affecting the arbitrage calculations.  Unless you instruct us otherwise, we will take the reporting 
position most favorable to you whenever reasonable.  Any of your bond issues may be selected for 
review by the IRS, which may not agree with our positions.  Any proposed adjustments are subject to 
certain rights of appeal.  Because of the lack of clarity in the law, we cannot provide assurances that 
the positions asserted by the IRS may not ultimately be sustained, which could result in the assessment 



of potential penalties.  You have the ultimate responsibility for your compliance with the arbitrage 
laws; therefore, you should review the calculations carefully. 

The IRS and some states have promulgated “tax shelter” rules that require taxpayers to disclose their 
participation in “reportable transactions” by attaching a disclosure form to their federal and/or state 
income tax returns and, when necessary, by filing a copy with the Internal Revenue Service and/or the 
applicable state agency.  These rules impose significant requirements to disclose transactions and such 
disclosures may encompass many transactions entered into in the normal course of business.  Failure 
to make such disclosures will result in substantial penalties.  In addition, an excise tax is imposed on 
exempt organizations (including state and local governments) that are a party to prohibited tax shelter 
transactions (which are defined using the reportable transaction rules).  Client is responsible for 
ensuring that it has properly disclosed all “reportable transactions” and, where applicable, complied 
with the excise tax provision.  The LLS Tax services that are the subject of this Engagement Letter do 
not include any undertaking by LLS Tax to identify any reportable transactions that have not been the 
subject of a prior consultation between LLS Tax and Client.  Such services, if desired by Client, will 
be the subject of a separate engagement letter.  LLS Tax may also be required to report to the IRS or 
certain state tax authorities certain tax services or transactions as well as Client’s participation therein.  
The determination of whether, when and to what extent LLS Tax complies with its federal or state “tax 
shelter” reporting requirements will be made exclusively by LLS Tax.  LLS Tax will not be liable for 
any penalties resulting from Client’s failure to accurately and timely file any required disclosure or 
pay any related excise tax nor will LLS Tax be held responsible for any consequences of its own 
compliance with its reporting obligations.  Please note that any disclosure required by or made 
pursuant to the tax shelter rules is separate and distinct from any other disclosure that Client might be 
required to or choose to make with its tax returns (e.g., disclosure on federal Form 8275 or similar 
state disclosure). 

PROFESSIONAL FEES AND EXPENSES 

Our professional fees for services listed above for the bond year ended September 25, 2018 is $650, 
which includes reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.  We will bill you upon completion of our services 
or on a monthly basis.  Our invoices are payable upon receipt.  Additionally, you may request 
additional consulting services from us upon occasion; we will bill you for these consulting services at 
a beforehand agreed upon rate. 

Unanticipated factors that could increase our fees beyond the estimate given above include the 
following (without limitation).  Should any of these factors arise we will alert you before additional 
fees are incurred. 

• Investment data provided by you is not in good order or is unusually voluminous. 

• Proceeds of bonds have been commingled with amounts not considered gross proceeds of the 
bonds (if that circumstance has not previously been communicated to us). 

• A review or other inquiry by the IRS with respect to an issue of bonds. 

 

 

 

 



ACCEPTANCE 

You understand that the arbitrage services, report and IRS forms described above are solely to assist 
you in meeting your requirements for federal income tax compliance purposes.  This Engagement 
Letter constitutes the entire agreement between Client and LLS Tax with respect to this engagement, 
supersedes all other oral and written representations, understandings or agreements relating to this 
engagement, and may not be amended except by the mutual written agreement of the Client and LLS 
Tax. 

Please indicate your acceptance of this agreement by signing in the space provided below and 
returning a copy of this Engagement Letter to us.   Thank you again for this opportunity to work with 
you. 

Very truly yours, AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 
LLS Tax Solutions Inc. Panther Trace II Community Development 

District  

  By:    

By: Linda L. Scott   Print Name    

 Linda L. Scott, CPA Title    

  Date:    
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 14. 




	Form 1_2017i.pdf
	Form 1 2017_lined_FINAL
	Form 1 2017_instructions_individual pages
	Form 1 2017_instructions_3-4
	Form 1 2017_instructions_5-6


	Proposal Grau CPA Auditing Services - Panther Trace II CDD.pdf
	Firm Qualifications & Experience
	Partial List of Clients

	Staff Qualifications,
	Experience & Resumes
	Forty-five percent of engagement is
	performed by “Management”


	References
	Cost of Services
	Supplemental Information
	Grau’s Understanding of Work Product / Scope of Services:

	LLS Tax Solutions Engagement Letter.pdf
	By:
	By: Linda L. Scott   Print Name
	Date:


	LAST NAME FIRST NAME MIDDLE NAME: 
	Mailing Address 1: 
	Mailing Address 2: 
	City: 
	Zip: 
	County: 
	NAME OF AGENCY: 
	Name of Office or Position Held or Sought: 
	CANDIDATE: Off
	NEW EMPLOYEE OR APPOINTEE: Off
	December 31, 2017: Off
	Specify Tax Year if Other than the Calendar Year: Off
	SPECIFY TAX YEAR IF OTHER THAN THE CALENDAR YEAR: 
	Comparative (Percentage) Threshold: Off
	Dollar Value Threshold: Off
	Name of Source of Income 1: 
	ADDRESSRow1: 
	Description of the Sources Principal Business Activity 1: 
	Name of Source of Income 2: 
	ADDRESSRow2: 
	Description of the Sources Principal Business Activity 2: 
	Name of Source of Income 3: 
	ADDRESSRow3: 
	Description of the Sources Principal Business Activity 3: 
	Name of Source of Income 4: 
	ADDRESSRow4: 
	Description of the Sources Principal Business Activity 4: 
	OF BUSINESS INCOMERow1: 
	OF SOURCERow1: 
	Principal Business Activity of Source 1: 
	OF BUSINESS INCOMERow2: 
	OF SOURCERow2: 
	Principal Business Activity of Source 2: 
	Name of Business Entity 3: 
	OF BUSINESS INCOMERow3: 
	OF SOURCERow3: 
	Principal Business Activity of Source 3: 
	Real Property 1: 
	Real Property 2: 
	Real Property 3: 
	Type of Intangible 1: 
	BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATESRow1: 
	Type of Intangible 2: 
	BUSINESS ENTITY TO WHICH THE PROPERTY RELATESRow2: 
	Name of Creditor 1: 
	ADDRESS OF CREDITORRow1: 
	Name of Creditor 2: 
	ADDRESS OF CREDITORRow2: 
	Name of Business Entity 1: 
	ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY 1: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY 1: 
	POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY 1: 
	I OWN MORE THAN A 5 INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS 1: 
	NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST 1: 
	Name of Business Entity 2: 
	ADDRESS OF BUSINESS ENTITY_2: 
	PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY_2: 
	POSITION HELD WITH ENTITY_2: 
	I OWN MORE THAN A 5 INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS_2: 
	NATURE OF MY OWNERSHIP INTEREST_2: 
	I certify that I have completed the required training: Off
	IF ANY OF PARTS A THROUGH G ARE CONTINUED ON A SEPARATE SHEET PLEASE CHECK HERE: Off
	Signature: 
	Date Signed: 


